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ANNUAL REPORT 2012 
 
INVESTMENT OPERATION REVIEW 
 
INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS 
 
Annual General Meeting 2013  
 
Sievi Capital plc's Annual General Meeting will be held on Thursday, 18 April 2013, in the company's head 
office in Sievi at 2:30 p.m. The matters stated in the summons to the meeting published in accordance with 
the Articles of Association will be discussed at the AGM. In addition, the meeting agenda is presented in the 
stock exchange release concerning the AGM and on the company's website at www.sievicapital.com.  
 
Those shareholders who are registered in Sievi Capital plc’s Register of Shareholders, kept by Euroclear 
Finland Ltd, on 8 April 2013 at the latest are entitled to attend the Annual General Meeting. To attend the 
AGM, a shareholder must register in advance by 4:00 pm (Finnish time) on 15 April 2013 either by mail to 
Sievi Capital plc, Yritystie 6, 85410 Sievi, Finland, by telephone on +358 8 4882 500, or by email to 
agm@sievicapital.com. 
 
When registering by mail, the letter must reach the company before the end of the registration period. Any 
powers of attorney are to be delivered as original copies before the end of the registration period. 
 
Return of capital 
 
Sievi Capital plc's proposal for the return of capital for the year 2012 and other proposals of the Board of 
Directors to the Annual General Meeting will be communicated in a separately issued summons to the 
AGM. The Board proposes that no dividend be paid for 2012. Capital returns of EUR 0.06 per share are 
proposed to be paid by reducing and dividing the share premium account. The return of capital will be paid 
to shareholders who are registered in the Register of Shareholders kept by Euroclear Finland ltd on the 
matching day. 
 
Sievi Capital plc's financial information in 2013  
 
Sievi Capital plc's Board of Directors has decided to publish interim accounts pursuant to Chapter 2, Section 
5 c of the Securities Markets Act instead of three- and nine-month interim reports.  
 
When making the decision, Sievi Capital plc's market value is less than EUR 75 million, meaning that the 
requirements set out in the Ministry of Finance's decree for the management to issue interim accounts 
instead of interim reports are met.  
 
In 2013, Sievi Capital plc will publish its interim accounts and interim report as follows: 
 
• The management's interim account on Monday, 29 April 2013 
• The interim report for 1 January – 30 June 2012 on Tuesday, 6 August 2013 
• The management's interim account on Thursday, 31 October 2013 
 
The financial accounts will be published in Finnish and English. They will be published on the company's 
website at www.sievicapital.com. The publications can also be ordered from Sievi Capital plc, Yritystie 6, 
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85410 Sievi or +358 8 4882 500. All reviews and bulletins published in 2012 are also available on the 
company's website. 
 
Register of Shareholders 
 
Shareholders are requested to report any changes in name or address to the bank, banking company or 
Euroclear Finland ltd which, as the account maintenance organization selected by the shareholder, 
administers the shareholder's book-entry account. 
 
GENERAL 
 
Year 2012 in figures 
 
• The result for the financial period was EUR 4.7 million (EUR -4.8 million). 
• Earnings per share were EUR 0.08 (EUR -0.08). 
• EUR 0.06 per share was distributed as dividends in May. 
• At the end of the year, the net worth per share was EUR 1.60 (EUR 1.52 in 2011). 
• The dividend-adjusted substance increased by 9.2% in 2012. 
• The Board of Directors proposes that no dividend be paid. 
• The Board also proposes that capital returns of EUR 0.06 per share be paid by reducing and 

dividing the share premium account. 
 
Sievi Capital plc in brief 
 
Sievi Capital plc is a listed (NASDAQ OMX Helsinki) investment company whose task is to manage the 
Group’s assets in a way that is efficient and distributes risk. The aim of the investment company is to create 
shareholder value through active shareholding. Assets are invested either in the fixed-income or equity 
market or in the longer term in capital investments and other targets within the limits of the total allocation. 
The primary objective of investment activity is to make capital investments mainly in industrial companies 
in which a significant holding is acquired. In order to ensure opportunities for having an impact, working in 
the Board of Directors is also desired. The investment company may also invest in other shares, ETF 
instruments, structured products, corporate bonds and other fixed-income investments. The investment 
activity is carried out with a long perspective.  
 
Sievi Capital plc demerged on 1 January 2012 into the investment company Sievi Capital plc and the contract 
manufacturing company Scanfil plc (discontinued operations). The execution of the partial demerger was 
entered into the Trade Register on 1 January 2012. In accordance with the demerger plan, the company's 
assets and liabilities associated with contract manufacturing and other industrial activities were transferred 
to the new company Scanfil plc as a result of the demerger. 
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99,98%          35,75%           40%           32,96%          23%      8,6% 

 
 
SIEVI CAPITAL PLC’S NET WORTH 
 
Net worth values published by Sievi Capital plc are:  EUR 1.52 at the end of 2011, EUR 1.62 at the end of 
March 2012, EUR 1.52 at the end of June 2012, EUR 1.58 at the end of September 2012, and EUR 1.60 at the 
end of December 2012. In 2012, the change in value was +9.2% adjusted by the dividend per share of EUR 
0.06. The net worth calculation is published in connection with the management's interim analyses and 
interim reports. 
 
KEYFIGURES 
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PRESIDENT’S REVIEW 
 

 
 
The first independent financial period for investment company Sievi Capital plc 
 
“Sievi Capital plc's history started in 1976 when Scanfil ltd was established. In 2008, investment activities 
were introduced alongside contract manufacturing due to an increase in assets. In 2011, the company name 
was changed into Sievi Capital plc. When investment activities expanded, Sievi Capital plc's Board of 
Directors approved a demerger plan on 11 August 2011, according to which Sievi Capital plc was demerged 
into two independent and separate listed companies through a partial demerger at the beginning of 2012. 
Sievi Capital plc continued as an investment company, while contract manufacturing and other industrial 
operations were concentrated into a separate company, i.e. the current listed company Scanfil plc. The aim of 
the demerger was to clarify the corporate structures, enhance operative transparency and promote the value 
appreciation for shareholders in the long term. 
 
The year 2012 was Sievi Capital plc's first financial period as an investment company after the demerger. 
With regard to investment activities, 2012 was a challenging year. The fair values of investments fluctuated 
strongly during the year. The 2012 result pursuant to IFRS was clearly positive in the end. Sievi Capital plc 
made changes in investment allocations during the year, and the risk level of investments was lowered. No 
significant losses were realized during the financial period.  
 
Sievi Capital plc’s strong financial position allows the company to operate actively also in uncertain 
economic cycles. The financial investments have been distributed so that Sievi Capital plc has realistic 
chances of obtaining competitive returns on the invested assets in spite of the continued uncertain market 
situation. The company has not used debt leveraging in its investment activity, and its equity ratio is high.  
 
In capital investments, the company is particularly interested in both industrial companies that have already 
established a profitable business model and growth companies that can be developed into companies that 
operate in the export market in the long term. All of Sievi Capital plc's unlisted associated companies are 
innovative start-ups operating in the export market with interesting and promising potential. In particular, 
the operations of Iloq ltd have developed positively, and the company has increased its market share 
especially in the Finnish and Swedish lock markets. All associated companies have technological 
competence, strong patent portfolios and commercially appealing applications.” 
 
Jorma J. Takanen 
President & CEO 
Sievi Capital plc 
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SIEVI CAPITAL PLC'S SHARE CAPITAL AND OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE 
 
Sievi Capital plc has a total of 60,714,270 shares. The company’s registered share capital is EUR 15,178,567.50. 
The company has one series of shares, and each share entitles the holder to one vote and an equal right to 
receive dividends. 
 
Sievi Capital plc’s shares are quoted on NASDAQ OMX Helsinki Ltd. The shares have been publicly traded 
since 24 May 2000. The trading code of the shares is SCI1V. The shares are included in the book-entry 
securities system maintained by Euroclear Finland Ltd. 
 
On 31 December 2012, Sievi Capital plc had a total of 4,405 shareholders, 74.4% of whom owned a maximum 
of 1,000 shares in the company. The ten major shareholders owned 77% of the shares. Nominee-registered 
shares accounted for 1.41% of the shares. Members of the Board of Directors of Sievi Capital plc and the CEO 
held a total of 25,682,415 shares on 31 December 2012, which accounts for 42.3% of the company's shares and 
votes. 
 
ASSOCIATED AND HOLDING COMPANIES OF SIEVI CAPITAL PLC 
 
Kitron ASA (KIT) (Sievi Capital plc's holding 32.96%) is a Norwegian listed contract manufacturer that 
operates in five different customer segments: the marine and oil industry, basic industry, defence equipment 
industry, hospital and healthcare equipment industry and data and telecommunications industry. In 
addition to Norway, Kitron has plants and production in Sweden, Lithuania, Germany, China and the 
United States. Kitron ASA's turnover for 2012 was NOK 1,695.1 million (approximately EUR 231.0 million). 
www.kitron.com 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 iLOQ ltd (Sievi Capital plc’s holding 23%) develops, manufactures and markets innovative, patented, high-
security, electronic and self-operated locking solutions that combine modern mechatronics with 

communications and software technology. The 
added customer value of the iLOQ S10-product 
range has been shown to be good and the 
company has achieved a significant market 
position in the Nordic countries and a favorable 
reception in Central Europe. Marketing of the 
DIN-compliant lock cylinder solution developed 
for the Central European market has commenced 
in Germany and  the Netherlands. www.iloq.fi 
 
 
 



 
6

IonPhasE ltd (Sievi Capital plc’s holding 35.75%) develops and manufactures high-quality dissipative 
polymers that help to control static electricity in plastic products. IonPhasE products are utilised in a wide 
range of industries, such as chemical, automotive, telecommunications and consumer electronics. IonPhasE 
manufactures IonPhasE IPE polymers based on its patented proprietary technology. www.ionphase.fi 
 
 

 
Panphonics ltd (Sievi Capital plc's holding 40%) is a leading manufacturer of products based on directional 
audio technology. Panphonics manufactures solutions based on proprietary patented directional audio 
technology for acoustically demanding applications. The company’s SoundShower speaker solutions are 
used in banks, store-specific advertisement systems, information kiosks and offices. In addition Panphonics 
is a component manufacturer. www.panphonics.com 
 
 

 
 
In addition Sievi Capital plc’s share of ownership in Lännen Tehtaat plc is 8,6 %. Lännen Tehtaat plc is a 
food production company whose shares are quoted on NASDAQ OMX Helsinki Ltd. The business 
operations of the group consist of the Frozen Food business, the Seafood business and the Grains and 
Oilseeds business. Lännen Tehtaat operates in the northern Baltic Sea region. www.lannen.fi 
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INVESTMENT STRATEGY 
 
Capital investments 
 

• In capital investments, the aim is a significant holding in the company.  
• In capital investments, attention is paid to the earnings logic and functionality of business models of 

the target companies.   
• The target companies can be either listed or unlisted.  
• The operations of the target companies are actively developed, mainly through board work.  
• The aim is to bring wide knowledge of business management for use by target companies. 
• No active disposal strategy is defined for the investments; the investments are made over  

the long term. 
 
Financial investments 
 

• The time span of financial investments is primarily under 3 years.  
• The yield target is the 3-month Euribor + 3%-4% on the entire financial investment portfolio.  
• Effective distribution across different asset types.  
• No short-term day trading is carried out.  
• The allocation is weighted according to market circumstances.  
• The main emphases of financial investments are on profitable share and fixed-income investments.  
• Significant liquidity restrictions are avoided. 
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SIEVI CAPITAL PLC, BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

  

Mr. Asa-Matti Lyytinen, Chairman of the Board of Directors 

Mr. Asa-Matti Lyytinen, M.Sc. (Econ.), (1950), has been a member of company’s Board of Directors since 2000. He has been a partner in 
Mecrastor PricewaterhouseCoopers ltd and the CEO of that company between 1992 and 2002. He was Mecrastor ltd's President and 
CEO between 1990 and 1992 and Deputy CEO between 1988 and 1990. Independent of the company and major shareholders. Chairman 
of Board of Directors: Kitron ASA, Panphonics ltd, Fermlab ltd, Fuko Pharma ltd. 

  

Mr. Jorma J. Takanen 

Mr. Jorma J. Takanen (1946), who is a Qualified Chemical Engineer, is the founder of the company and has been the 
company's President & CEO during 1976 - 2005 and Group CEO of Sievi Capital Group from 1 February 2005 - 31 December 2011. He 
has also been a member of the Board of Directors since 1976 and currently he is CEO & President of Sievi Capital plc. Not independent 
of the company and major shareholders. Chairman of Board of Directors: Scanfil plc, Chairman of Board of Directors: Foundation of 
Riitta and Jorma J. Takanen, Member of Supervisory Board: Varma Mutual Pension Insurance Company, Member of Board of Directors:  
iLoq ltd, IonPhasE ltd and Lännen Tehtaat plc 

 

 
Mr. Harri Takanen 

 

Mr. Harri Takanen (1968), Master of Science, Managing Director of Scanfil plc and Scanfil EMS ltd. Harri Takanen has 
worked for Sievi Capital Corporation (old Scanfil plc) as Managing Director 2007 - 2011. He has served Scanfil Group since 1994, for 
example as Director of operations in China, Scanfil (Hangzhou) Co., ltd's Managing Director, Technology Director, Director of 
Customer Relations, Customer Service Manager and Plant Manager of Sievi mechanics. Not independent of the company and major 
shareholders. Member of Board of Directors: Scanfil plc 
 

  
 
Mr. Jarkko Takanen 

 
Mr. Jarkko Takanen (1967) has been a member of company’s Board of Directors 1997 – 2003 and from 2005. He has 

worked for Scanfil plc during 1995 – 2004 among others as Customer Service Manager, Works Manager, Quality Manager, IT Manager 
and Director of Sourcing and Logistics. As Managing Director of Belgian subsidiary Scanfil N.V. he acted between 1 April 2003 and 30 
June 2004. Jarkko Takanen is a Qualified Production Engineer and holds a Commercial College Diploma in Management Accountancy. 
Not independent of the company and major shareholders. Member of Board of Directors: Scanfil plc, Managing Director and Member of 
Board of Directors at Jussi Capital ltd. 
 

  
 
Ms. Riitta Kotilainen 
 
Ms. Riitta Kotilainen (1958), Engineer of Electrical Power Technology, Electrical works director Scanfil EMS 
Corporation.  Since year 1999 Kotilainen has served as President and CEO in E. Kotilainen ltd. In the meantime, the 

years 1985-1999 she worked as a director of electrical work, E. Kotilainen ltd. In the period 1983-1985 Kotilainen was foreman of 
Kokkola supplier's electrical installation unit. Not independent of the company and major shareholders. At present, Riitta Kotilainen is 
a board member of credit union bank in Sievi and managing director of Varikot ltd. 
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2012 
 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS' REPORT 2012 
 
Key events during the period 
 
Sievi Capital plc's operating profit in January–December stood at EUR 0.7 million (EUR 0.1 million), and the 
review period's IFRS result was EUR 4.7 million (EUR -4.8 million). The result includes a non-recurring item 
of EUR 1.1 million recognised in the first quarter due to Sievi Capital plc’s share of the damages paid by 
Ojala-Yhtymä Oy in a contract dispute. Earnings per share were EUR 0.08 (EUR -0.08) and return on 
investment was 6.9% (N/A). In January–December, EUR 3.4 million (EUR 3.0 million) of interest and 
dividend returns on financial investments and transfer gains were recognised, together with EUR 0.0 million 
(EUR 0.1 million) of financial expenses. Realised sales losses stood at EUR 0.8 million (EUR 0.0 million), and 
value changes in investment assets recognised at fair value through profit or loss were EUR +3.7 million 
(EUR -7.4 million). Assets recognised through profit or loss totalled EUR 6.3 million (EUR -4.6 million). The 
Group’s share of the associated companies’ losses and goodwill amortisation stood at EUR -0.8 million (EUR 
-4.6 million). The profit from investment activities recognised through profit of loss, including all financial 
and capital investments, totalled EUR 5.5 million (EUR -6.2 million) for the financial period. 
 
During the review period, new shares in the associated company IonPhasE Ltd were subscribed at EUR 1.5 
million, and the granting of a capital loan was decided upon. EUR 0.2 million of new capital loans were 
recognised during the period. No other new capital investments were made during the review period. 
 
Sievi Capital plc’s share of the associated companies’ losses and goodwill amortisation totalled EUR –0.8 
million (EUR -1.7 million). Of the capital investments, Lännen Tehtaat plc, which does not fulfil the 
definition of an associated company, is measured at fair value, and the change in the value of EUR -0.2 
million (EUR -1.5 million) is recognised in the fair value reserve under equity, adjusted for tax liabilities, net 
EUR -0.2 million (EUR -1.1 million).  
 
All in all, 2012 was a relatively good investment year despite the heavy market fluctuation. The return on the 
HEX index was 8.3% and that on the STOXXEurope 600 index was 14.4% in 2012. 
 
Structural and financial arrangements 
 
Sievi Capital plc demerged on 1 January 2012 into the investment company Sievi Capital plc and the contract 
manufacturing company Scanfil plc (discontinued operations). The execution of the partial demerger was 
entered into the Trade Register on 1 January 2012. In accordance with the demerger plan, the company's 
assets and liabilities associated with contract manufacturing and other industrial activities were transferred 
to the new company Scanfil plc as a result of the demerger. 
 
Scanfil N.V., a Belgian subsidiary in which Sievi Capital plc holds 99.98% of all shares, has not engaged in 
any production activities since 2006. 
 
Sievi Capital plc's investments 
 
Sievi Capital plc’s investment activity is divided into financial investments and capital investments. The 
gains and losses from investment activities are recognised under financial income and expenses in the 
income statement. On 31 December 2012, the distribution of the investment portfolio, calculated at 
acquisition prices, was: financial investments 63% and capital investments 37%. The corresponding target 
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allocation is: financial investments 30%–50% and capital investments 50%–70%. On 31 December 2012, the 
internal distribution of the investment allocation was: money market investments 47%, ETF and equity 
investments 16%, and capital investments 37%. The money market investments were divided as follows: 
risk-free fixed-income investments 35%, low-risk investments 19% and moderate-risk investments 46%. The 
average remaining term of the structured instruments in the investment portfolio is less than four years, and 
they account for approximately one fifth of the financial investments.  
 
Investment assets refer to liquid assets and financial investments. They do not include shareholdings in 
associated companies or Lännen Tehtaat plc, which are classified as long-term holdings and are included in 
the capital investments segment. 
 
Investment assets stood at EUR 57.8 million (EUR 51.7 million). Of the investment assets, EUR 16.0 million 
(EUR 9.6 million) were deposited in bank accounts and as time deposits with less than three months' 
maturity. Of the investment assets, EUR 41.8 million (EUR 42.1 million) were invested in financial 
instruments, mainly in bonds, credit-linked notes, structured investment instruments and ETF and equity 
investments. In compliance with the IFRS, the investments have been recognised at fair value. 
 
Significant events after the financial period 
 
In January 2013, a total of EUR 0.2 million of a new bond loan was recognised in the associated company 
IonPhase Oy. IonPhase Oy's President will be changed and the new President will start on 1 March 2013.  
 
Sievi Capital plc's Board of Directors has appointed Harri Takanen (M.Sc.) as the new President of Sievi 
Capital plc starting from 1 April 2013. Currently, he works as the President of Scanfil plc. After the change, 
Jorma J. Takanen, the current President, will continue working on the Board of Directors. No costs will arise 
for the company from the termination of his presidency agreement. 
 
Estimate of probable future development 
 
The available investment assets offer Sievi Capital plc good opportunities for acquisitions conforming to the 
investment strategy, aiming to obtain a stake in select companies facilitating an active influence on their 
operations. The current economic uncertainty and recession have lowered the prices of potential capital 
investment objects. 
 
Analysts lowered their estimates throughout 2012, but the sentiment has taken a more positive tone. Long-
term interest rates have become extremely low. The state loan market in crisis states has calmed down and in 
Spain, for example, the interest rate has halved from its peak level. The decline in interest rates indicates that 
market confidence in the corrective measures has improved, at least temporarily. The high market liquidity 
and the transition of investment assets from interest investments to equities may support the development of 
the equity market before the next market disruption. However, the investment environment remains to be 
highly challenging where market corrections can be expected. 
 
In the uncertain investment environment, Sievi Capital plc's interest and dividend income is expected to 
remain at the previous year’s level. 
 
Outlook for the associated companies:  
iLOQ Oy estimates its turnover will double in 2013. It is targeting strong growth in the Nordic countries and 
the Central European market through its new product (a lock cylinder pursuant to the DIN standard). 
Operations of the subsidiaries in charge of marketing in Germany and the Netherlands commenced at the 
beginning of 2012. 
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As the result of a significant decrease in Panphonics Ltd’s turnover, business operations have been 
reorganised. Currently, sales are generated via the distribution network, and no major delivery projects have 
been signed. During the review period, the company's cost structure was lightened and its marketing 
strategy was revised. Panphonics Ltd received a new managing director, with the previous managing 
director becoming a member of the Board of Directors. The target set for the first half of 2013 is to turn the 
company's product sales and productivity into growth. 
 
The IonPhasE IPE product range is being complemented by several new products. IonPhasE Ltd expects to 
achieve a significant position with dissipative plastic polymers based on a new innovation. Harmful static 
electricity causes significant problems in various purposes of use and applications. In 2012, the company 
achieved significant breakthroughs in packaging solutions for the chemical and electronics industries, and 
has excellent potential in products offered for leading providers within these fields in 2013. The company’s 
turnover is estimated to continue on the current path of strong growth. The company's customer base and 
number of sales projects have increased considerably, which improves the company’s chances of reaching its 
growth and profitability targets. 
 
The associated company Kitron ASA in Norway evaluated its outlook in its financial statements release 
published on 13 February 2013. According to the company, its turnover will develop steadily in 2013, 
showing some fluctuation between different business segments. The company estimates that the positive 
development of a number of business development programmes and its production units in China, 
Germany and the United States, including the recovery of Swedish operations, will have a productive impact 
on the company. 
 
Lännen Tehtaat plc's financial statements were published on 14 February 2013. According to the company, 
the 2013 turnover is expected to improve from the reference period thanks to organic growth and the 
business acquisition completed in 2012. In addition, the Group's full-year operating profit without non-
recurring items is expected to be better than in the reference period because of growth and development 
measures in business operations. The result is expected to improve the most during the first half of the year.   
 
Liquidity and solvency  
 
Sievi Capital plc's liquidity is good. The closing consolidated balance sheet amount was EUR 93.3 million 
(EUR 208.5 million in 2011). The equity ratio was 96.1% (95.1%) and net gearing was -64.5% (-58.6%). The 
previous year's reference figures contain both continuing and discontinued operations before the demerger.  
 
The investment cash flow of EUR 10.2 million (EUR -27.4 million in 2011) consists of financial investments 
and a property sales price. The financing cash flow of EUR -3.5 million (EUR -11.4 million) contains 
dividends of EUR 3.5 million (EUR 6.9 million). The previous year's reference figures also contain the cash 
flow of discontinued operations. 
 
Net worth and share price development 
 
Sievi Capital plc published its net worth for the first time on 21 February 2012, at which time the net worth 
per share with the values of 31 December 2011 was EUR 1.52. The corresponding net worth at the end of 
March was EUR 1.62, at the end of June EUR 1.52, at the end of September EUR 1.58, and at the end of 
December EUR 1.60. In 2012, the change in value was +9.2% adjusted by the dividend per share of EUR 0.06. 
The net worth calculation is published in connection with the management's interim analyses and interim 
reports. 
 



 
12

The number of outstanding shares used in the net worth calculation is 57,730,439 shares. Sievi Capital plc 
does not have comparable net worth figures for the previous years. In the calculation of net worth, publicly 
quoted securities, investment funds and derivatives are valued at the closing price. However, for the 
associated company Kitron ASA and for Lännen Tehtaat plc, the price used is the volume-weighted average 
price for the five days preceding the valuation date. Otherwise, if no public trading price has been available, 
the bid quote or value ratified by the issuer has been used. Unquoted shares and holdings are measured at 
the last purchase price or fair value, using imputed valuation methods. 
 
The highest price for Sievi Capital plc on the first trading day after the demerger on 2 January 2012 was EUR 
1.65. It was also the highest price during the entire period. Following the demerger, the average share price 
for the five first days of trading weighted by transaction volumes was EUR 1.48. The lowest price during the 
period was EUR 0.88, with trading closing at EUR 0.91 at the end of the period. A total of 8,929,731 shares 
were traded during the review period, corresponding to 14.7% of the total number of shares. The market 
value of share capital was EUR 55.9 million on 31 December 2012. 
 
Notifications of changes in shareholding 
 
Sievi Capital plc was informed on 18 April 2012 in accordance with Chapter 2, section 9 of the Securities 
Market Act that the Sievi Capital plc shares transferred to heirs and beneficiaries as the result of the 
distribution of matrimonial assets and estate of Eero Alvari Kotilainen’s estate on 9 April 2012, had been 
transferred to Varikot ltd (to be established) through the transaction completed on 17 April 2012. Following 
the arrangement, Varikot ltd holds 7,273,109 Sievi Capital plc shares, or 11.98% of all shares, and it is the 
second-largest individual shareholder in Sievi Capital plc. On the basis of an agreement between the 
shareholders, the voting rights of Varikot ltd are held jointly by Riitta-Liisa Kotilainen (50%) and Sirpa 
Kotilainen (50%). 
 
In a notification received by Sievi Capital plc on 18 July 2012 pursuant to Chapter 2, Section 9 of the 
Securities Markets Act, Variko Oy announced that a change had taken place in Varikot ltd’s voting rights, 
effective 18 July 2012. On the basis of an agreement between the shareholders, the voting right in Varikot ltd 
will be exercised by Sirpa Kotilainen (50%), Riitta-Liisa Kotilainen (25%) and Aleksi Kotilainen (25%). Sirpa 
Kotilainen, Riitta-Liisa Kotilainen and Aleksi Kotilainen also personally hold shares in Sievi Capital plc. 
Riitta-Liisa Kotilainen is a member of the Board of Directors of Sievi Capital plc. 
 
Treasury shares 
 
On 31 December 2012, Sievi Capital plc owned a total of 2,983,831 treasury shares, representing 4.9% of the 
company's share capital and total number of votes. No changes have taken place in the number of treasury 
shares during the review period. 
 
Personnel 
 
Sievi Capital plc had 2 employees during the review period. 
 
Board of Directors and President 
 
In the Annual General Meeting held on 19 April 2012, Jorma J. Takanen, Asa-Matti Lyytinen and Jarkko 
Takanen were selected to the company's Board of Directors as established members. Riitta Kotilainen and 
Harri Takanen were selected as new members. In its organisation meeting on 19 April 2012, the new Board 
of Directors selected Asa-Matti Lyytinen as its Chairman. On 1 January 2012 – 31 December 2012, Sievi 
Capital plc's President was Jorma J. Takanen, Qualified Chemical Engineer. 
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The Board of Directors' authorisations 
 
Sievi Capital plc’s Annual General Meeting held on 19 April 2012 decided to authorise the Board of Directors 
to decide on repurchasing a maximum of 3,000,000 treasury shares with distributable assets in accordance 
with the Board of Directors’ proposal. The authorisation will remain in force for 18 months after it is issued.  
On 8 April 2010, the AGM authorised the Board of Directors to decide on the transfer of a maximum of 
5,900,000 treasury shares held by the company in compliance with the regulations of the Companies Act in 
force. The authorisation will remain in force for three years after it is issued. The authorisations have not 
been exercised. 
 
The Board of Directors has no existing share issue authorisations or authorisations to issue convertible bonds 
or bonds with warrants.  
 
The Nomination Committee of Sievi Capital plc's Board of Directors proposes to the Annual General 
Meeting that five (5) members be confirmed as the number of Board members. 
 
The Board's Nomination Committee and the company's major shareholders, representing more than 50% of 
the company's shares and votes, propose that Asa-Matti Lyytinen, Jorma J. Takanen, Jarkko Takanen and 
Harri Takanen, and Jonna Tolonen as a new member, be selected to the Board of Directors according to their 
consent. 
 
Sievi Capital plc's proposal for the return of capital for the year 2012, and other proposals of the Board of 
Directors to the Annual General Meeting will be communicated in a separately issued summons to the 
AGM. The Board proposes that no dividend be paid for 2012. Capital returns of EUR 0.06 per share are 
proposed to be paid by reducing and dividing the share premium account.  
 
The Board of Directors' proposals to the Annual General Meeting are available on the company website at 
www.sievicapital.com. 
 
Assessment of operational risks and uncertainties 
 
The Board of Directors of Sievi Capital plc is responsible for ensuring the appropriate organisation of the 
company's risk management and internal control and audit. Sievi Capital plc's risk management is based on 
the risk management policy ratified by the Board of Directors, according to which risks are categorised into 
strategic and operational risks. The aim is to manage risks in a comprehensive and proactive manner. The 
goal of Sievi Capital plc’s risk management activities is to identify and analyse factors that have a negative 
impact on achieving the investment company’s objectives in the short and long term, as well as to initiate 
measures to minimise and postpone or eliminate these risks.  
 
The most significant short-term risks associated with investment activities, such as a decrease in the value of 
investments, could be realised if the European debt crisis escalates further and the global economy does not 
recover to achieve durable growth or if it enters a long phase of below-average growth. The debt problems 
could be escalated further in certain countries, and the effects may become widespread. The European 
banking sector is still vulnerable in spite of extensive market subsidy operations by the ECB. The economy 
slowing down again in the United States would result in direct problems in the unbalanced economy. 
Growing tensions in the Middle East and North Korea may increase investors’ fears of a widespread conflict, 
which would have immediate negative effects on the vulnerable global economy. 
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Economic activity has clearly weakened and consumers have become increasingly cautious. The growth 
figures of the global economy and China’s GDP may deteriorate further. Uncontrolled currency storms and 
unexpected fluctuations in interest rates are possible in the near future. The devaluation of JPY and other 
significant commercial currencies in relation to the euro has started. In a difficult economic environment, 
citizens’ discontent will be emphasised further around the world, causing extensive unrest. The slowness of 
political decision-making and the resulting uncertainty has already clearly increased the risk premium in the 
capital market and volatility at times. The extreme fear is the realisation of systemic risk, which might result 
in a period of chaos similar to the fall of Lehman Brothers at least in the capital market. The factors described 
above have an effect on the capital market and, if they materialise, the negative development in the securities 
market may continue. 
 
In other respects, the risks facing Sievi Capital plc’s business have remained essentially the same. Risks and 
risk management are described in greater detail on the company’s website under Corporate Governance and 
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
 
Corporate Governance Statement 
 
The Corporate Governance Statement is published in the company's annual report and is available on the 
company's website www.sievicapital.com under Corporate Governance. 
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EUR Note 1.1.-31.12.2012 1.1.-31.12.2011
 
Continuing operations
Other operating income 2 1 244 244 1 762 270

Employee benefit expenses 3 -186 022 -338 589
Depreciation and amortization 4 -57 275 -454 650
Other operating expenses 5 -335 354 -898 503

Operating profit 665 593 70 528

Financial income 6 7 110 921 3 000 284
Financial expense 7 -847 622 -7 556 331
Share of profit or loss of associates -761 556 -1 654 994

Profit before tax 6 167 336 -6 140 513

Income tax 8 -1 473 643 1 368 364

Net profit for the period, Continuing operations 4 693 693 -4 772 149

Discontinued operations
Net profit for the period, Discontinued operations 0 1 678 513

Net profit for the period 4 693 693 -3 093 636

Attributable to:
Shareholders of the parent company 9

Earnings per share for profit attributable
to the shareholders of the parent company, EUR 0,08 -0,08

Earnings per share, basic and diluted, EUR
Continuing operations 0,03

Earnings per share, basic and diluted, EUR
profit for the period 0,08 -0,05

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Net profit for the period 4 693 693 -3 093 636

Other comprehensive income

Discontinued operations
Derivative financial instrument -651 342

Continuing operations
Available-for-sale investments -156 140 -1 129 815
Translation differences 500 991 18 492
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 344 851 -1 762 665

Total comprehensive income 5 038 544 -4 856 301

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME, IFRS 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION, IFRS 
EUR Note 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
ASSETS
Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 10 17 079 4 281 902
Goodwill 11 500
Other intangible assets 12 23 596 335 22 761 594
Investments in associated companies 13 7 799 360 8 022 155
Available-for-sale investments
Financial assets at fair value through profit or los 14 17 109 475 19 924 667
Receivables 15 243 237 500 000
Deferred tax assets 16 907 016 1 760 822

49 672 502 57 251 640
Current assets

Loan receivables from associated companies 15 421 000
Trade and other receivables 17 419 543 791 819
Advance payments 2 203
Financial assets at fair value through profit or los 14 24 703 146 22 149 201
Cash and cash equivalents 18 16 011 141 9 629 267

41 133 830 32 993 490

Non current assets held for sale 19 2 527 018 2 527 018
Discontinued operations 115 688 284

Total assets 93 333 350 208 460 432

SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Oma pääoma

Share capital 15 178 568 15 178 568
Share premium account 16 088 978 16 088 978
Translation differences 1 037 485 536 594
Other reserves -67 468 4 971 193
Retained earnings 57 479 801 51 467 321

Total equity 20 89 717 364 88 242 654

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities 16 154 683 365 965
Provisions 21 2 681 429 3 440 614

2 836 112 3 806 579
Current liabilities

Trade and other liabilities 80 273 56 239 321
Current tax 699 601 98 434

22 779 874 56 337 755
Discontinued operations 60 073 444

Total liabilities 3 615 986 120 217 778

Total shareholder's equity and liabilities 93 333 350 208 460 432  
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW  STATEMENT, IFRS 
EUR Note 1.1.-31.12.2012 1.1.-31.12.2011

Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit 4 693 693 -4 772 149
Adjustments for the net profit 23 -4 725 611 4 573 428
Change in net working capital 23 -158 976 -747 378
Paid interests and other financial expenses -35 781 -58 488
Interest received 110 848 217 054
Taxes paid -179 284 -2 431 879
Discontinued operations 27 271 759
Net cash from operating activities -295 111 24 052 347

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of associated companies -1 470 404 -103 320
Investments in tangible and intangible assets -13 900
Purchase of investments -25 478 929 -34 988 529
Granted loans -239 931 -921 000
Repayments of granted loans 921 000
Sale of tangible and intangible assets 4 208 049
Proceeds from sale of investments 30 079 561 10 368 350
Interest received from investments 1 031 502 755 127
Dividends received from investments 1 189 963 1 070 569
Discontinued operations -3 565 656
Net cash flow from investing activities 10 240 811 -27 398 359

Cash flow from financing activities
Dividends paid -3 463 826 -6 927 653
Discontinued operations -4 444 444
Net cash from financing activities -3 463 826 -11 372 097

Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents 6 481 874 -14 718 109
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 9 629 267 57 923 876 *
Demerger -100 000
Changes in exchange rates 1 613 547
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 18 16 011 141 44 819 314

*  Includes cash and cash equivalents of discontinued operations, totalling 35.190.047 euros  
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY, IFRS 
 

Share
Share premium Other Translation Retained Equity

EUR Note capital account reserves differences earnings total

Equity 1.1.2012 15 178 568 16 088 978 4 971 193 536 594 51 467 321 88 242 654
Discontinued operations, transfer -4 882 521 4 782 513 -100 008

Comprehensive income
Net profit for the period 4 693 693 4 693 693
  Other comprehensive income,
  net of tax

Available-for-sale investments -156 140 -156 140

500 891 500 891
Translation differences -156 140 500 891 4 693 693 5 038 444

Transactions with owners
  Dividends paid 20 -3 463 826 -3 463 826
Transactions with owners total -3 463 826 -3 463 826
Equity 31.12.2012 15 178 568 16 088 978 -67 468 1 037 485 57 479 801 89 717 364

Equity 1.1.2011 15 178 568 16 088 978 6 244 025 5 652 376 117 611 875 160 775 822
Comprehensive income

Net profit for the period -3 093 636 -3 093 636
  Other comprehensive income,
  net of tax

Available-for-sale investments -1 129 815 -1 129 815

-651 342 -651 342
Translation differences 18 495 18 495

Total comprehensive income -1 781 157 18 495 -3 093 636 -4 856 298
Transactions with owners
  Dividends paid 20 -6 927 653 -6 927 653

Share based compensation -55 614 940 -55 614 940
Transactions with owners total -62 542 593 -62 542 593
Fund transfer 508 325 -508 325 0
Discontinued operations, translation differences -5 134 277 -5 134 277
Equity 31.12.2011 15 178 568 16 088 978 4 971 193 536 594 51 467 321 88 242 654

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent company

Discontinued operations, derivative 
financial instrument

Discontinued operations, derivative 
financial instrument
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ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES FOR CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

Sievi Capital plc is a Finland-based public limited company domiciled in Sievi. The company s shares have 
been quoted on NASDAQ OMX Helsinki Ltd since 2000. Sievi Capital plc s extraordinary general meeting 
on 22 November 2011 decided on the demerger of the company so that contract manufacturing and other 
industrial operations were demerged into a new publicly listed company while investment activity remained 
in the demerged company, Sievi Capital plc. In the consolidated financial statements for 2011, Scanfil EMS 
Group was treated as a discontinued operation. 

Sievi Capital’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), applying the IAS and IFRS effective on 31 December 2012, as well as 
the SIC and IFRIC interpretations. IFRS refers to the standards and their interpretations in the Finnish 
Accounting Act and the provisions issued thereunder in accordance with the Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 
of the European Parliament and of the Council on the application of international accounting standards 
within the Community. The notes to the consolidated financial statements are also in compliance with 
Finnish accounting and corporate legislation.   
 
Principles of consolidation  
 
Subsidiaries 
 
Subsidiaries are companies controlled by the Group. Control emerges when the Group holds more than one 
half of the votes or otherwise has control. The existence of potential voting rights is also taken into account 
when estimating the criteria for control when the instruments entitling to potential voting rights can be 
realized at the time of the assessment. Control refers to the right to decide on the principles of the company's 
finances and operations in order to gain benefits from its operations. 
Intra-group shareholdings have been eliminated using the acquisition cost method. Consideration 
transferred and the identifiable assets and assumed liabilities of the acquired company are measured at fair 
value at the time of the acquisition. Acquisition-related expenses, apart from expenses related to the issue of 
debt or equity securities, have been recorded as expenses. Consideration transferred does not include 
business operations handled separately from the acquisition. Their impact has been taken into account in 
connection with the acquisition through profit or loss. Any conditional additional purchase price is 
measured at fair value at the time of the acquisition and classified as either debt or equity. Additional 
purchase classified as debt is measured at fair value at the balance sheet date of each reporting period, and 
the resulting profit or loss is recognised through profit or loss on under other comprehensive income. 
Additional purchase price classified as equity is not re-valued. 
 
Acquired subsidiaries are consolidated from the moment the Group has gained control, and divested 
subsidiaries until control ceases to exist. All intra-group transactions, receivables, liabilities and unrealised 
gains and internal profit distribution are eliminated upon preparing the consolidated financial statements. 
Unrealised losses are not eliminated in case the loss is due to impairment loss. The distribution of the profit 
or loss for the financial period to the parent company’s owners and non-controlling interest is presented in a 
separate income statement, and the distribution of comprehensive income to the parent company’s owners 
and non-controlling interest is presented in connection with the statement of comprehensive income. Any 
non-controlling interest in the target of acquisition is measured at fair value or at an amount corresponding 
to the non-controlling interest’s proportion of the identifiable net assets of the target of the acquisition. The 
measurement principle is determined separately for each acquisition. Comprehensive income is attributed to 
the holders of the parent company and non-controlling holders, even if this led to the non-controlling 
interest being negative. Shareholders’ equity attributable to non-controlling interest is presented as a 
separate item under shareholders' equity in the balance sheet. Changes in the parent company’s holding in a 
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subsidiary that do not result in the loss of control are handled as equity-related transactions. In connection 
with a gradually implemented acquisition, previous holding is measured at fair value and the resulting 
profit or loss is recognised. Should the Group lose control in a subsidiary, the remaining holding is 
measured at fair value on the date of losing control, and the resulting difference is recognised through profit 
or loss. Acquisitions made prior to 1 January 2010 are handled in accordance with the regulations effective at 
the time.  
 
Associated companies 
 
Associated companies are companies over which the Group exercises considerable influence. As a rule, 
considerable influence emerges when the Group holds more than 20% of votes in the company or the Group 
otherwise has considerable influence, but not control. Associated companies are consolidated in the 
consolidated financial statements using the equity method. If the Group's share of the losses of an associated 
company exceeds the carrying amount of the investment, the investment is recorded on the balance sheet at 
zero value and losses exceeding the carrying amount are not consolidated unless the Group has committed 
to fulfilling the associated companies’ obligations. An investment in an associated company includes the 
goodwill resulting from its acquisition.  The proportion of the associated companies' results for the period 
based on the Group's holding is presented as a separate item under operating profit. Correspondingly, the 
Group’s proportion of changes recognised under the associated company’s other comprehensive income is 
recognised under the Group’s other comprehensive income. The Group’s associated companies did not have 
such items.  
  
Items denominated in a foreign currency 
 
The figures concerning the result and financial position of Group units are measured in the currency that is 
the currency of each unit's main operating environment (operating currency). The consolidated financial 
statements are presented in euro, which is the operating and reporting currency of the Group's parent 
company. Foreign currency-denominated transactions are recorded in the operating currency using the 
foreign exchange rates on the transaction date. In practice, a rate that is sufficiently close to the rate of the 
transaction date is often used. The resulting exchange rate differences have been included in the net profit or 
loss. Foreign exchange gains and losses are handled as adjustments on sales and purchases. Rate differences 
in financing are presented as net amounts under financial income and expenses.   
Translation differences owing to the different exchange rates used in the income statement and balance 
sheet, as well as the differences attributable to the use of the acquisition cost method, have been recorded in 
Group equity, and the change in translation difference is presented in the statement of comprehensive 
income for the financial period. 
 
Matching principles 
 
Interest income and other financial income are recognised on an accrual basis and dividend income when 
the right to a dividend has emerged. 
 
Business segments 
 
The Sievi Capital Group has one business segment: investment activity.  
The business segment of the discontinued operation, the Scanfil EMS group, is contract manufacturing 
activity, divided into the geographical regions Asia and Europe. 
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Employee benefits 
 
The Group has different kinds of pension arrangements according to local practices. The statutory pension 
cover of the Group’s Finnish employees is provided through insurance policies. Foreign subsidiaries have 
arranged the pension cover of their employees in accordance with local legislation. The pension cover of the 
Group’s employees is provided through external pension insurance companies. Pension expenses are 
recognised as expenses for the year during which they are accrued. The Group does not have defined-benefit 
schemes in use. 
  
Leases 
 
A lease is classified as a financial leasing agreement if it substantially transfers the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership to the Group. Assets acquired through finance leases are recorded in the 
consolidated balance sheet under assets and liabilities. Their depreciation is performed in the same way as 
for owned assets. Finance lease payments will be recorded as financial expenses and reduction in liability. 
The Group has no finance leases. Leases where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership remain with 
the lessor are processed as other leases, and the leases are recognised in the income statement as expenses 
over the lease period. 
 
Property, plant and equipment 
 
The main items included in this category are buildings, machinery, equipment, fixtures and fittings. They are 
stated on the balance sheet at original acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment 
losses. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the expected useful lives of the assets. 
 
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed annually and adjusted, if appropriate, to indicate 
changes in expected economic benefits.  
An item of property, plant and equipment will no longer be depreciated when such an item is considered as 
being held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.  
 
The planned depreciation periods are as follows: 
 
Buildings and structures  25 years  
Machinery and equipment 3–8 years 
Other tangible assets 5–10 years 
 

Goodwill and other intangible assets 
Goodwill  
Goodwill arising in the consolidation of business operations is measured at the amount by which the 
consideration transferred, non-controlling interest in the target of acquisition and previous holding 
combined exceed the Group’s proportion of the fair value of the acquired net assets.  No depreciation is 
recorded for goodwill (and other intangible assets with unlimited financial useful lives) but they are tested 
annually for impairment. For this purpose, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units, or in the case of 
associated companies, goodwill is included in the cost of the associated company in question. Goodwill is 
measured at original cost less impairment. 
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Research and development costs 
Research and development costs are recognised as expenses through profit or loss. Development costs as per 
IAS 38 (Intangible Assets) are capitalised and amortised over their useful lives. The Group has no capitalised 
research and development costs. 
 

Other intangible assets 
Intangible assets are recorded in the original acquisition cost on the balance sheet if the acquisition cost can 
be reliably determined and it is likely that the financial benefit from the asset is beneficial to the Group. 
Intangible assets are recorded as straight-line depreciations on the income statement within their estimated 
useful life. 
 
Impairment of tangible and intangible assets  
 
The Group’s operations have been divided into cash-generating units (CGU) which are smaller than 
segments. The need for impairment is assessed regularly on the CGU level. The impairment test is 
conducted for the lowest CGU that is largely independent of other units and whose cash flows can be 
separated from other cash flows.  
 
To determine the need for impairment of assets, the capital employed by the unit is compared against the 
discounted future cash flows expected to be derived from the unit or against the net selling price, whichever 
is higher. An impairment loss is recorded when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable 
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement. If the impairment loss is related to a 
cash-generating unit, it is first allocated to reduce the goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit and 
thereafter to reduce the other asset items of the unit pro rata. An impairment loss related to property, plant 
and equipment and other intangible assets, excluding goodwill, is reversed if there has been a change in the 
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reverse only to the extent that 
the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 
depreciation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not 
reversed. 
 
Investment property 
 
Investment properties are properties held by the Group to generate rental income or value appreciation. The 
Group’s investment properties are measured using the cost model.  
 
Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations 
 
The assets and liabilities of major operations that have been sold or are classified as held for sale or to be 
discontinued are presented separately in the balance sheet. The net operating result for such operations and 
the net result arising from their sale or discontinuation are shown in the income statement separately from 
the profit or loss for continued operations. Non-current assets classified as held for sale or groups of assets to 
be disposed of are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.  
 
Financial assets and liabilities 
 
The Group's financial assets are divided into the following groups on the basis of IAS 39: financial assets 
recognised at fair value through profit or loss, loans and other receivables, and investments held for sale. 
The classification is made in connection with the initial acquisition according to the purpose of use of the 
financial assets.  
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Financial assets recognised at fair value through profit or loss are either financial assets held for sale or 
investments held to maturity. This group includes bonds, index loans, structured investment instruments 
and shares, as well as ETFs (Exchanged Traded Fund). Several instruments include a component that 
generates a fixed interest rate and a component linked to, for example, a share index or credit liability, which 
is a linked derivative. Items are measured at fair value based on published market quotations. Changes in 
fair value with both realised and unrealised profits and losses are recorded under financing income and 
expenses for that accounting period when they arose. 
Assets held for trading are included either in short-term or long-term financial assets; in the latter, if they 
mature in more than 12 months. 
 
Loans and other receivables are non-derivative financial instruments that are not quoted on public markets. 
They have a fixed or definable payment date and the Group does not hold them for trading. This entry 
includes sales and other receivables. Accounts receivable are measured at cost less any impairment losses. 
The amount of uncertain receivables is evaluated on a case-by-case basis. Credit losses are recorded as 
expenses in the income statement.  
This entry also includes time deposits, available-for-sale investments, liquid assets on the balance sheet that 
mature in over three months. 
 
Available-for-sale investments include both quoted and non-quoted shares. Quoted shares are measured at 
fair value, which is the market price of the date of the financial statement. Changes in fair value are recorded 
in the revaluation reserve under equity until the investment is traded or otherwise transferred, at which 
point the changes in fair value are recorded in the income statement. Investments in non-quoted shares are 
stated at the lower of cost and probable realisable value because their fair values cannot be determined 
reliably.   
  
The Group's financial assets are analysed on every closing date in order to identify whether there are any 
indications of a reduction in value concerning a property item. 
 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and at bank, as well as short-term bank deposits.  Deposits 
are classified in two categories: available-for-sale investments, liquid assets that mature in less than three months 
and available-for-sale investments, liquid assets that mature in over three months. The latter are classified in the 
category Loans and other receivables. Liquid assets are reported under acquisition costs on the balance 
sheet.  
 
The Group's financial liabilities are recognised at the original acquisition cost. 
 
Provisions 
 
A provision is recognised when a past event has created an obligation that will probably be realised and 
when the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.  Provisions include, among others, 
restructuring costs. A restructuring provision is recorded when a detailed and appropriate plan has been 
drawn up and when there is a valid expectation that the restructuring will be carried out. 
 
Income taxes and deferred taxes 
 
The taxes of the consolidated income statement include taxes based on the results of the Group companies 
and calculated in accordance with local tax laws and tax rates. The taxes in the income statement also 
include the change in deferred tax assets and liabilities. 
Deferred tax assets or liabilities are calculated on temporary differences between book value and tax bases, 
based on tax rates for the following year that have been enacted by the balance sheet date. Temporary 
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differences arise from the valuation of investments at fair value, depreciation differences and provisions, 
among others. 
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised in full. Deferred tax assets are recognised only when it is probable that 
the assets can be utilised against the taxable profit of future financial periods. 
In the consolidated financial statements, the parent company’s accumulated depreciation difference is 
divided between shareholders’ equity and deferred tax liability. 

Operating profit 
 
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements does not specify the concept of operating profit. The Group has 
defined it as the net sum of turnover plus other operating income less acquisition costs adjusted for the 
change in inventories of finished goods and work in progress as well as costs arising from production for 
own use, less employee benefit expenses, depreciation and any impairment losses and other operating 
expenses. All of the items in the income statement apart from those specified above are presented under 
operating profit. Exchange rate differences are included in the operating profit if they arise from operations-
related items; otherwise, they are recognised in financial items.  
 
Dividend 
  
The dividend proposed to the Annual General Meeting by the Board of Directors has not been deducted 
from distributable equity prior to the AGM's approval.  
 
Use of estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with international accounting standards and generally 
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
contents of the financial statements. The estimates and assumptions made are based on previous experience 
and assumptions, which in turn are based on the circumstances prevailing at the time the financial 
statements are prepared and future prospects.  
 
The key estimates concern the following fields: 

- the economic depreciation period of intangible and tangible assets 
- impairment testing for goodwill and non-quoted associated companies 
- amount of provisions associated with business operations 

 
Even though the estimates are based on the most recent information available and management’s best 
judgement, the actual outcome may differ from the estimates. 
 
Presentation in Euros 
 
The financial statements are presented in Euros, and the information is based on historical costs unless 
otherwise stated in the accounting principles. 

Application of new and amended standards and interpretations  
 
IASB has published new or revised standards and interpretations whose application will be mandatory in 
2013 or later. The Group has decided not to apply these standards earlier.  
The Group does not expect that the new standards, interpretations or amendments to the standards will 
have any material impact on the Group's future financial statements. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS , IFRS 
1. Segment

Investing operations 1.1.-31.12.2012 1.1.-31.12.2011
1000 EUR

Operating profit 666 70
Financial income 3 419 3 000
Financial expenses -37 -143
Realised losses -811 -3
Change in fair value 3 692 -7 411
Share of profit or loss of associates -762 -1 655

Investment assets 93 333 92 772

Sievi Capital plc's Board of Directors signed on 11 August 2011 the company's demerger plan, which was ratified by the 
Extraordinary General Meeting on 22 November 2011.  In accordance with the demerger plan, contract manufacturing and other 
industrial operations demerged into a new publicly listed company while investment activity remained in the demerged 
company, Sievi Capital plc. The name of the new contract manufacturing company is Scanfil plc. The execution of the demerger 
was entered in the Trade Register on 1 January 2012. In the consolidated financial statements, the Scanfil EMS group is treated as a 
discontinued operation.   

The Sievi Capital group has one business segment: investment activity. The primary objective of investment activity is to make 
capital investments mainly in industrial companies in which a sufficient holding that enables active Board work is acquired. The 
company also makes financial investments in shares, corporate bonds and other fixed-income investments, among others. 

 
 
2. Other operating income

2012 2011

Proceeds from contract dispute 1 068 932
Rental income 164 384 1 762 106
Other 10 929 164
Total 1 244 244 1 762 270

Rental income consists of the rent for the Sievi property leased to Scanfil EMS ltd over January–February 2012.       
Scanfil EMS ltd purchased the property in spring 2012. In the previous year, the company had also leased the Vantaa property to 
Scanfil EMS ltd.
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3. Personnel expenses,  EUR

2012 2011

Salaries, wages and fees 185 053 323 421
Pension costs – defined-contribution schemes -5 095 7 065
Other indirect employee expenses 6 064 8 103
Total 186 022 338 589

The company does not have outstanding stock options.

Average number of Group employees during the period 2 3

Management’s employee benefits are reported in note 29, Related party transactions.

The company has a large pension fund compared to current labour expenses accumulated from statutory pension contributions. 
The bonus from statutory pension contributions and resulting funds covers the majority of the pension contributions, and the 
bonus for 2012 exceeded the pension contributions.

 
 
4. Depreciation and amortization,  EUR

Depreciation by asset class 2012 2011

Intangible assets
Intangible rights 500 500

Total 500 500

Property, plant and equipment
Buildings 54 192 445 684
Machinery and equipment 463 463
Other tangible assets 2 120 8 003

Total 56 775 454 150

Total depreciation and amortization 57 275 454 650

 
 
5. Other operating expenses,  EUR 

Other operating expenses include the following 2012 2011
significant expense items:
Rent and maintenance expenses 137 931 39 858
Travel, marketing and vehicle expenses 19 538 40 125
Other employee expenses 280 1 003
Other operating expenses 177 605 817 517
Total 335 354 898 503

 
 

Auditor's remuneration 2012 2011

Audit fees 11 300 43 768
Certificates and statements 0 4 307
Total 11 300 48 075
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6. Financing income,  EUR 

2012 2011

Dividend income from available-for-sale investments 872 668 1 070 569
Interest income from investments held to maturity 57 908
Change in fair values of assets entered through profit and loss in fair values 3 691 729
Exchange rate gains 53 866
Capital gains from marketable securities 2 478 659 1 643 392
Other financial income 67 865 174 549
Total 7 110 921 3 000 284

Other comprehensive income:
31.12.2012

Available-for-sale investments -156 140

31.12.2011

Available-for-sale investments -1 129 815

Entered in other comprehensive income

Entered in other comprehensive income

 
 
7. Financing expenses,  EUR 

Entered through profit or loss:

2012 2011

Realised losses from marketable securities 811 000 2 613
Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value throught profit or loss 7 410 950
Exchange rate losses 582 92 579
Other financial expenses 36 040 50 189
Total 847 622 7 556 331
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8. Income taxes,  EUR

2012 2011

Current tax 780 451 488 434
Deferred taxes 693 192 -1 856 798
Total 1 473 643 -1 368 364

Reconciliation of tax expense in the income statement and taxes 
calculated at the tax rate applicable in Finland (24,5%):

Earnings before taxes 6 167 346 -6 140 513

Taxes calculated at Finnish tax rate 1 511 000 -1 596 533
Tax exempt income -305 530 -278 348
Utilisation of previously unrecognised taxable losses -31 642 -40 162
Results of associated companies 186 581 430 298
Other items 113 234 116 381
Taxes in income statement 1 473 643 -1 368 364

Disclosure of tax effects relating to components of other comprehensive income
Before-tax Tax Net-of-tax

31.12.2012 amount effects amount

Available-for-sale investments -206 808 -50 668 -156 140

Before-tax Tax Net-of-tax
31.12.2011 amount effects amount

Available-for-sale investments -1 496 444 -366 629 -1 129 815

 
 
9. Earnings per share,  EUR

2012 2011

Net profit attributable to the shareholders of the parent company 4 693 693 -3 079 060
Net profit attributable to the shareholders of the parent company, Continuing operations -4 772 149
Net profit attributable to the shareholders of the parent company, Discontinued operations 1 693 089

Number of shares at end of the period (1,000) 57 730 57 730
Weighted average number of shares 57 730 57 730
during the period (1,000)

Earnings per share (EPS) EUR, basic 0,08 -0,05
Earnings per share (EPS) EUR, basic, Continuing operations -0,08
Earnings per share (EPS) EUR, basic, Discontinued operations 0,03

The company does not have items that might dilute the earnings per share.
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10. Property, plant and equipment,  EUR 2012

Other Tangible
Buildings and Machinery and tangible assets

Land constructions equipments assets total

Acquisition cost at 1.1.2012 216 959 8 025 614 2 315 324 683 8 569 571
Deductions -216 959 -8 025 614 -227 104

Acquisition cost at 31.12.2012 0 0 2 315 97 579 99 894

Accumulated depreciations at 1.1.2012 -3 982 217 -1 273 -304 179 -4 287 669
Depreciations -54 192 -463 -2 120 -56 775
Deductions 4 036 409 225 219

Accumulated depreciations at 31.12.2012 0 -1 736 -81 080 -4 344 444

Carrying amount at 1.1.2012 216 959 4 043 397 1 042 20 504 4 281 902
Carrying amount at 31.12.2012 0 0 579 16 500 17 079

The value of land includes connection fees 15.137 euros.

 
 
10. Property, plant and equipment,  EUR 2012

Advance
Other payments and Tangible

Buildings and Machinery and tangible constructions assets
Land constructions equipments assets in progress total

Acquisition cost at 1.1.2012 1 234 898 30 292 588 51 739 402 809 910 937 446 85 014 244
Transfer,
Discontinued operations -499 775 -17 993 673 -51 737 087 -436 699 -937 446 -71 604 680
Additions 13 900 13 900
Transfer to non-current
assets classified
as held for sale -532 064 -4 273 301 -48 528 -4 853 893

Acquisition cost at 31.12.2012 216 959 8 025 614 2 315 324 683 8 569 571

Accumulated depreciations at 1.1.2012 -9 072 071 -40 732 068 -731 979 -50 536 118
Transfer, 
Discontinued operations 3 257 191 40 731 258 387 275 44 375 724
Depreciations -445 684 -463 -8 003 -454 150
Transfer to non-current
assets classified
as held for sale 2 278 347 48 528 2 326 875

Accumulated depreciations at 31.12.2012 -3 982 217 -1 273 -304 179 -4 287 669

Carrying amount at 1.1.2012 1 234 898 21 220 517 11 007 334 77 931 937 446 34 478 126
Carrying amount at 31.12.2012 216 959 4 043 397 1 042 20 504 0 4 281 902

The value of land includes connection fees  124.280 euros.
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11. Other tangible assets,  EUR 2012

Intangible
Intangible assets

rights total

Acquisition cost at 1.1.2012 16 068 16 068
Deductions -13 568 -13 568

Acquisition cost at 31.12.2012 2 500 2 500

Accumulated depreciations at 1.1.2012 -15 568 -15 568
Depreciations -500 -500
Deductions 13 568 13 568

Accumulated depreciations at 31.12.2012 -2 500 -2 500

Carrying amount at 1.1.2012 500 500
Carrying amount at 31.12.2012 0 0

 
 
11. Other tangible assets,  EUR 2011

Other Intangible
Intangible long-term assets

rights expenses total

Acquisition cost at 1.1.2011 5 021 141 1 886 959 6 908 100
Transfer, Discontinued operations -5 005 073 -1 886 959 -6 892 032

Acquisition cost at 31.12.2011 16 068 0 16 068

Accumulated depreciations at 1.1.2011 -1 932 846 -1 434 251 -3 367 097
Depreciations -500 -500
Transfer, Discontinued operations 1 917 778 1 434 251 3 352 029

Accumulated depreciations at 31.12.2011 -15 568 0 -15 568

Carrying amount at 1.1.2011 3 088 295 452 708 3 541 003
Carrying amount at 31.12.2011 500 0 500
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12. Investments in associated companies, EUR

2012 2011

Total at beginning of period 22 761 594 25 731 660
Transfer, Discontinued operations -1 436 884
Share of associated companies result after tax -761 556 -1 654 994
Additions 1 470 404 103 320
Acquisitions -374 990
Translation differences 500 883 18 492
Total at end of period 23 596 335 22 761 594

Groups associated companies Group
owner-

Domicile ship (%)
31.12.2012
iLOQ Oy Oulu 22,96
Kitron ASA Billingstad, Norway 32,96
Panphonics Oy Espoo 40,00
IonPhasE Oy Tampere 35,75

31.12.2011
iLOQ Oy Oulu 22,96
Kitron ASA Billingstad, Norway 32,96
Panphonics Oy Espoo 40,00
IonPhasE Oy Tampere 40,00

On 31 December 2012, the carrying amount of associated companies includes EUR 3.8 million of allocated goodwill. The carrying 
amount of Kitron ASA was EUR 18.5 million and its market value was EUR 15.8 million on 31 December 2012. The balance sheet 
total of the associated companies stood at EUR 150.0 million and equity was EUR 67.9 million. The total turnover was EUR 236.5 
million and profit for the period was EUR 1.8 million. The information is based on the preliminary financial statements for the 
financial period of 2012.

 
 
13. Available-for-sale investments,  EUR

2012 2011

Cost at 1 Jan. 8 167 016 8 167 016
Deductions -15 987

Cost at 31 Dec. 8 151 029 8 167 016
Accumulated changes in fair value at 1 Jan. -144 861 1 378 980

Change in fair value -206 808 -1 523 841
Carrying amount at 31 Dec. 7 799 360 8 022 155

Available-for-sale investments include the following shares
Ownership Acquisition cost Market value

Lännen Tehtaat plc 8,60 % 8 145 027 7 793 358 7 793 358
Other shares 6 002 6 002 6 002

8 151 029 7 799 360 7 799 360

Change in the value of listed shares is recognised in the revaluation reserve under equity. 
Unlisted shares are recorded at purchase price or a lower probable realisable value. 

Carrying amount 
at 31 Dec.
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Held for trading 2012 2011
Cost at 1 Jan.

Long term 17 101 305 22 452 890
Short term 28 109 622 26 711 013

Total 45 210 927 49 165 914
Change in fair value -3 398 306 -7 092 046

41 812 621 42 073 868
Carrying amount at 31 Dec.

Long term 17 109 475 19 924 667
Short term 24 703 146 22 149 201

Total 41 812 621 42 073 868

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss consist mainly of bonds, credit linked notes, structured 
investments products and ETF and share investments.

14. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, EUR

 
 
15. Receivables,  EUR

Receivables from associated companies 2012 2011

Cost at 1 Jan. 500 000 200 000
Transfer, Discontinued operations -200 000
Additions 243 237 500 000
Deductions -500 000

Carrying amount at 31 Dec. 243 237 500 000

Short term receivables
Loan receivables 421 000
Total 421 000

The current loans of EUR 421,000 granted for IonPhase Oy were repaid, while the equity bond loan of EUR 500,000 over the year 
2011 was converted into shares according to loan terms. At the end of 2012, a new bond loan of EUR 239,930.70 was recognised. 
The bond loan gives authorisation to issue new B-shares so that the unpaid loan capital equalling the subscription price of the 
company's new B-share and any interest accumulated on it according to the loan terms entitle the bond holder to subscribe to one 
new B-share. The subscription price comprises the loan's nominal value and the number of company shares can be increased by a 
maximum of 774,806 new B-shares as a result of share subscriptions. The subscription period for the shares to be subscribed on 
the basis of the bond loan starts from 1 March 2014 and ends on 30 December 2014.
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16. Deferred tax assets and receivables,  EUR

Recognised Recognised
through under other

31.12.2011 profit and comprehensive 31.12.2012
loss income

Deferred tax assets:
Valuation of available-for-sale financial
assets at fair value 1 760 822 -853 806 907 016
Total 1 760 822 -853 806 907 016

Deferred tax liabilities:

Accumulated depreciation difference -356 504 249 123 -107 381
Reversal of amortisation of assets classifield
as available-for-sale -9 461 -37 841 -47 302

Total -365 965 211 282 -154 683

 
 
16. Deferred tax assets and receivables,  EUR

Recognised Recognised
Transfer, through under other

Discontinued profit and comprehensive
31.12.2010 operations loss income 31.12.2011

Deferred tax assets:
Related to inventories 226 502 -226 502
Other 73 201 -73 201
Valuation of available-for-sale financial
assets at fair value 0 1 760 822 1 760 822

Total 299 703 -299 703 1 760 822 1 760 822

Deferred tax liabilities:

Accumulated depreciation difference -562 111 148 127 57 480 -356 504
Reversal of amortisation of assets classifield
as available-for-sale -9 461 -9 461
Remeasurement at fair value -83 438 83 438 0
Valuation of available-for-sale financial
assets at fair value -358 535 358 535 0
Related to inventories -48 169 48 169
Other items -6 795 6 795

Total -1 059 048 203 091 131 457 358 535 -365 965

 
 
17. Trade and other receivables,  EUR

2012 2011

Accrued income 408 917 713 730
Other 10 636 78 089
Total 419 553 791 819

The essential items included in accrued income are related to interest. Other receivables are mainly
value-added tax receivables.  
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18. Cash and cash equivalents,  EUR

2012 2011

Cash and cash equivalents 16 011 141 9 629 267
Total 16 011 141 9 629 267

 
 
19. Non-current assets held for sale

2012 2011

Vantaa plant property 2 527 018 2 527 018

The Vantaa plant property is classified as a non-current available-for-sale asset as of 1 October 2011.

 
 
20. Equity
The following is a reconciliation of the number of shares:

Share
Number of Share premium Total

shares capital, EUR account, EUR EUR

1.1.2011 60 714 270 15 178 568 16 088 978 31 267 546

31.12.2011 60 714 270 15 178 568 16 088 978 31 267 546

31.12.2012 60 714 270 15 178 568 16 088 978 31 267 546

Shares and share capital
Sievi Capital plc has a total of 60,714,270 shares. The company’s registered share capital is EUR 15,178,567.50.
The company has one series of shares, and all shares belong to the same class. Each share entitles the holder 
to one vote and the equal right to receive dividends. 
Sievi Capital plc’s shares are quoted on NASDAQ OMX Helsinki Oy. The shares have been publicly traded 
since 24 May 2000. The trading code of the shares is SCI1V. The shares are entered in the book-entry securities system
administered by Euroclear Finland Ltd.

Translation differences
Translation differences arise from the conversion of the Norwegian associated company.

Other reserves
Other reserves includes a reserve comprising of transfers from retained earnings in accordance with the Articles of 
Association of foreign companies and the fair value reserve comprising of accumulated changes in the value of 
available-for-sale investments.

2012 2011

Transfer to reserves, Continuing operations 4 882 521
Transfer to reserves, Discontinued operations 198 042 198 042
Fair value reserve -265 510 -109 370
Total -67 468 4 971 193
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Own shares and authorization of Board of Directors
On 31 December 2012, the company owned a total of 2,983,831 of its ows shares representing 4.9 % of the company's
share capital and votes.
The Annual General Meeting held on 19 April 2012 authorised the Board of Directors to decide on the repurchase of a 
maximum of 3.000.000 shares in the company. The authorization is valid for 18 months after its granting.
Authorization of transfering a maximum of 5.900.000 shares decided by the Annual General Meeting held on 8 April 
2010 is valid for three years after its granting. During the financial period 2012, no shares were repurchased or transfered.
The Board of Directors has no existing share issue authorisations or authorisations to issue
convertible bonds or warrants.

The Board of Director's proposal for the distribution of assets
After the closing date, the Board of Directors proposed that no dividend be paid over the financial period closed on 
31 December 2012. The Board also proposes that capital returns of EUR 0.06 per share be paid by reducing and 
dividing the share premium account.

 
 
21. Provisions,  EUR

2012 2011

Provisions at 1 Jan. 3 440 614 4 422 524
Transfer, Discontinued operations -224 500
Used provisions -839 185 -827 410
Discounting effect 80 000 70 000
Provisions at 31 Dec. 2 681 429 3 440 614

The provision mainly includes the pension liability associated with the restructuring expenses of Scanfil NV.  

 
 
22. Non-current liabilities,  EUR

2012 2011

Transfer, Discontinued operations -44 046 929
Dividend liability, partial demerger 55 614 940
Trade payables 25 450 519 599
Accrued liabilities 748 483 192 907
Other creditors 5 941 10 309

Total 779 874 56 337 755

The most significant items included in accrued liabilities:
Employee expenses 36 654 62 141
Direct taxes 699 601 98 434
Other accrued liabilities 12 228 32 332

Total 748 483 192 907
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23. Cash flow statement adjustments,  EUR

2012 2011
Adjustments

Depreciation according to plan 57 275 454 650
Financial income and expenses -5 501 753 6 211 041
Taxes 1 473 643 -1 368 364
Changes in provisions -759 185 -757 410
Other adjustments 4 409 33 511

Total -4 725 611 4 573 428

Changes in working capital
Inc(-)/dec(+) in short-term non-interest bearing receivables  388 331 -402 189
Inc(+)/dec(-) in short-term non-interest-bearing liabilities  -547 307 -345 189

Total change in working capital -158 976 -747 378

 
 
24. Financial assets and liabilities, fair value, EUR

Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value
Note 2012 2012 2011 2011

Non-current assets
Available-for-sale investments 13 7 799 360 7 799 360 8 022 155 8 022 155
Financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss 14 17 109 475 17 109 475 19 924 667 19 924 667
Receivables 15 243 237 243 237 500 000 500 000

Lyhytaikaiset rahoitusvarat
Loan receivables from associates 15 421 000 421 000
Trade and other receivables 17 419 553 419 553 791 819 791 819
Financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss 14 24 703 146 24 703 146 22 149 201 22 149 201
Cash and cash equivalents 18 16 011 141 16 011 141 9 629 267 9 629 267

Total financial assets 66 285 912 66 285 912 61 438 109 61 438 109

Current financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 22 779 874 779 874 56 337 755 56 337 755

Total financial liabilities 779 874 779 874 56 337 755 56 337 755

 
 
25. Hierarchy of fair value 2012

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets at fair value through
profit and loss 21 476 436 20 336 185 41 812 621
Available-for-sale investments 7 793 359 7 793 359
Total 29 269 795 20 336 185 49 605 980
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25. Hierarchy of fair value 2011

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets at fair value through
profit and loss 22 149 202 19 924 667 42 073 869
Available-for-sale investments 8 000 166 8 000 166
Total 30 149 368 19 924 667 50 074 035

 
 

No transfers between different levels of the hierarchy have taken place.
The fair values of hierarchy level 1 are based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets. The Group has
primarily used the prices on the NASDAQ OMX stock exchange in determining the fair value of these instruments.
The fair values of level 2 instruments are significantly based on other input data than the quoted prices included in
level 1, however so that the data can be either directly or indirectly expected for the asset in question. In determining 
the fair value of these instruments, the Group utilises widely accepted measurement models whose input data, however,
is significantly based on verifiable market data.
The fair values of level 3 instruments are based on input data concerning the asset that are not based on verifiable
market data but significantly on the estimates of the management and their use in widely accepted measurement models.
The level of fair value hierarchy to which a certain item measured at fair value is classified in full is defined in 
accordance with the lowest-level input data significant with regard to the entire item measured at fair value. 
The significance of the input data is estimated with regard to the entire asset measured at fair value in question in full.

 
 
26. Risk management

Investment risks

Overall decentralisation of investments aims at preventing or making highly unlikely losses that are high compared� 
to the amount of total investments. Decentralisation is also coordinated within individual classes of assets in terms of risk
management.

The investment policy approved by Sievi Capital plc's Board provides guidelines for the investment of assets and determines the 
limits for risks and guides the allocation into various risk and asset categories. With regard to financial investments, the 
management of total risk is facilitated by select instruments, the majority of which are highly liquid and marketable. The 
majority of capital investments are  associated companies of Sievi Capital plc, and the proportion of their results corresponding to 
the holding is recognised in the Group's result. 

The investments include market risk and some counterparty risk. Market risk is specifically controlled by decentralising the 
investments to a sufficient extent into different asset categories and through geographical distribution.
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Sievi Capital plc's investment portfolio is divided into two parts: financial investments and capital investments.
The target allocation and actual allocation of the portfolio on 31 December 2012 were as follows:

Financial investments: target allocation allocation on 31.12.2012
1. Money market investments 20-35 % 47 %

   Risk-free interest investments 30 % 35 %
   Low-risk investments 30 % 19 %
   Moderate risk investments 40 % 46 %

2. ETF and share investments 10-15 % 16 %

Capital investments: 50-70 % 37 %

Currency risk
The company can also make investments in currencies other than the euro, which exposes the company to translation risks, i.e.
risks that emerge when investments in other currencies are translated into the company's operating currency, which is the euro.
The only capital investment that is not euro-denominated is Kitron ASA (Norway), which includes a significant
currency exposure in NOK. The carrying amount of the investment was on 31.12.2012 oli EUR 18.5 millions and 
its market price was EUR 15.8 millions.

Currency risks can be hedged with forward exchange contracts. The financial statements at 31 December 2012 did not contain
open forward exchange contracts.

Interest rate risk
The yield of the financial investments and interest-bearing liabilities carry an interest rate risk. The company has significant
financial assets, and changes in interest rates have an effect on the Group's result. 

Credit risk
The company has granted a loan to its associated company and an absolute guarantee for the obligations of an associated 
company to its financier bank. The impairment of the associated company's financial position will expose the company to credit 
risk. 

The financial investments are mainly euro-denominated. Of the financial investments on 31.12.2012 
approximately 5% were in currencies other than the euro (USD, SEK).

The interest rate risk of loans can be controlled with the proportion between variable rate and fixed-interest loans. The company 
did not have interest-bearing liabilities on the date of the financial statements, 31 December 2012.

 
 
Liquidity risk
Considering the Group's balance sheet structure, the liquidity risk is small. The Group's liquid cash reserve was on 31.12.2012 

EUR 16.0 milllions (EUR 9.6 millions in 2011). Good liquidity is maintained by investing cash assets only in low-risk investments 
that can be converted quickly and at an unambiguous market price into cash assets only in low-risk investments that can be 
converted into cash.  
 
27. Management of capital structure

With a strong capital structure, the company can ensure normal prerequisites for operations as well as growth 
opportunities. The company examines different options for more efficient capital management.

2012 2011

Gearing, % -64,5 -58,6
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28. Commitments and contingencies,  EUR

2012 2011
Mortgages to secure own debt 

Mortgages on property 2 522 805 3 447 405
Business mortgages 6 831 557 6 831 557

Total 9 354 362 10 278 962

Guarantees given
On behalf of assocciated companies 300 000 300 000

Total 300 000 300 000

A bank guarantee issued by a financial institution to secure the payment of pension contributions related to the restructuring of 
the subsidiary Scanfil NV has been received, and Sievi Capital plc has given the financial institution a counterguarantee to cover 
the potential liabilities resulting from the realisation of the bank guarantee. Scanfil NV’s balance sheet contains a corresponding 
provision.

 
 
29. Related party transactions

The Group's parent and subsidiary relationships are as follows: Parent
Group's share company’s

Domicile ownership of votes ownership

Parent company Sievi Capital plc Finland
Scanfil NV Belgium 100 % 100 % 99,998 %
Companies of Discontinued operations
Scanfil EMS Oy Finland 100 % 100 % 100 %
Scanfil Kft Hungary 100 % 100 %
Scanfil Oü Estonia 100 % 100 %
Scanfil (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. China 100 % 100 %
Scanfil (Hangzhou) Co., Ltd. China 100 % 100 %
Rozália Invest Kft Hungary 100 % 100 %

List of associated companies is presented in note 14, Investments in associated companies.

The Group's related parties include the parent company, subsidiaries and associated companies. Furthermore, members of the 
Board and Management Teams, including the President, are considered to be related parties.
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Related party transactions and related party receivables and liabilities, EUR

Interest income Loan receivable Interest receivable Capital loan

31.12.2012
IonPhasE Oy 23 165 3 306 239 931

31.12.2011
IonPhasE Oy 2 549 421 000 2 549 500 000

After the demerger Sievi Capital plc and Scanfil plc have same principal owners.

Bussineses and open accounts with Scanfil plc during 2012: Purchases Loans
Scanfil plc provides administration services to Sievi Capital plc

Administration payments 2012 31 804 7 782

Sale
Purchase price 4 208 049
Received rents January-February 2012 164 384

Sievi Capital plc has sold an realestate asset to subsidiary of Scanfil plc, Scanfil EMS Ltd, in 
which the buyer was previously a tenant.

A subordinated loan of EUR 500,000 was granted to the associated company IonPhase Oy in 2011, with the due date being 31 
December 2012 and the interest rate 5%. The loan was converted into shares in 2012. At the end of 2012, a new equity loan of EUR 
239,931 was subscribed. The loan's due date is 31 December 2014 and interest rate 8%. In addition, the company has received a 
EUR 250,000 absolute guarantee for IonPhasE Oy's bank guarantee limit and EUR 50,000 delivery guarantee for a supplier. 

 
 
Management’s employee benefits, EUR
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 2012 2011

President of the parent company 65 395 181 199
Board of Directors of parent company 41 880 160 839
Discontinued operations, presidents of subsidiaries 0 374 913
Total 107 275 716 951

Salaries paid to the President and Board members, EUR 2012 2012

Jorma J. Takanen   CEO, Board member 68 635 82 839
Asa-Matti Lyytinen  Chairman of the Board 13 440 24 000
Harri Takanen  Member of the Board 5 880 181 199
Jarkko Takanen  Member of the Board 8 400 24 000
Tuomo Lähdesmäki   Member of the Board until 19.4.2012 2 520 24 000
Reijo Pöllä   Member of the Board until 19.4.2012 2 520 6 000
Riitta-Liisa Kotilainen   Member of the Board 19.4.2012 onwards 5 880
Total 107 275 342 038

Mr. Jorma J. Takanen has worked as President and CEO of Sievi Capital plc during 2012. During 2011 Mr. Harri Takanen worked 
as President in both Sievi Capital plc and Scanfil EMS Ltd.  Scanfil EMS Ltd paid the president's salary.
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KEY RATIOS 
Key financial indicators 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Turnover, EUR m 210,8* 219,3 197,3 218,9
Turnover, growth from previous year, % -3,9* 11,1 -9,8 -2,5
Operating profit, EUR m 0,7 0,1 14,4 16,0 21,1
Operating profit, % of turnover N/A N/A 6,6 8,1 9,7
Profit/loss for the period, EUR m 4,7 -3,1 10,9 14,3 15,6
Profit/loss for the period, % of turnover N/A N/A 5,0 7,3 7,1

Return on equity, % 5,3 -1,9** 7,0 9,7 11,2
Return on investment, % 6,9 -6,9 8,7 13,9 13,7
Interest-bearing liabilities, EUR m 40,0 12,0 12,0
Gearing, % -64,5 -58,6 -26,2 -46,7 -38,4
Equity ratio, % 96,1 95,1 64,6 75,0 76,1
Gross investments in fixed assets, EUR m 0 0 10,1 3,1 3,9
Gross investments in fixed assets, % of turnover N/A N/A 4,6 1,6 1,8
Average number of employees for the period 2 3 1 992 1 924 1 976

Key indicators per share
Earnings per share, EUR 0,08 -0,05 0,19 0,25 0,27
Shareholders’ equity per share, EUR 1,55 1,53 2,78 2,61 2,50
Dividend per share, EUR 0,06 0,12 0,12 0,12
Dividend per earnings, % -1,12 63,7 48,6 45,0
Effective dividend yield, % 3,06 4,04 4,36 5,91
Price-to-earnings ratio (P/E) 11,2 -36,6 15,8 11,1 7,6

Share trading
No. of shares traded, thousands 8 930 1 973 4 687 7 382 6 066
Percentage of total shares, % 14,7 3,2 7,7 12,2 10,0

Share performance
Lowest price for year, EUR 0,88 1,85 2,40 1,82 1,76
Highest price for year, EUR 1,65 3,15 3,14 2,81 2,45
Average price for year, EUR 1,16 2,53 2,88 2,18 2,07
Price at the end of year, EUR 0,91 1,96 2,97 2,75 2,03
Market value of share capital, EUR m 55,9 119,0 180,3 167,0 123,2

Share-issue adjusted number of shares
At the end of the period, thousands 57 730 57 730 57 730 57 726 58 443
On average during the period, thousands 57 730 57 730 57 730 57 992 58 696

* Scanfil EMS Group turnover and change from previous year.
** Equity before booking of dividend liability due to the demerger.  
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CALCULATION OF KEY INDICATORS

Return on equity, % Net profit for the period x 100
Shareholders’ equity  (average) 

Return on investment, % (Profit before taxes + interest and other financial expenses) x 100
Balance sheet total - non-interest-bearing liabilities (average)

Gearing (%) (Interest-bearing liabilities - cash and other liquid financial assets) x 100
Shareholders’ equity 

Equity ratio (%) Shareholders’ equity x 100  
Balance sheet total - advance payments received

Earnings per share Net profit for the period
Average adjusted number of shares during the year

Shareholders’ equity per share Shareholders’ equity
Adjusted number of shares at the end of the financial period

Dividend per share Dividend to be distributed for the period (Board’s proposal)
Number of shares at the end of year

Dividend per earnings (%) Dividend per share x 100
Earnings per share

Effective dividend yield (%) Dividend per share x 100
Share price at the end of year

Price-to-earnings ratio (P/E) Share price at the end of year  
Earnings per share

Average share price Total share turnover
Number of shares traded

Market capitalisation Number of shares x last trading price of the financial period  
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PARENT COMPANY INCOME STATEMENT, FAS 
 
EUR Note 1.1.-31.12.2012 1.1.-31.12.2011

Other operating income 1 1 300 551,40 1 763 245,76

Personnel expenses 2 -186 022,32 -338 589,08
Depreciation 3 -268 035,34 -493 264,92
Other operating expenses 4 -297 298,03 -859 854,93

Operating profit 549 195,71 71 536,83

Financial income 6 5 535 532,00 2 921 547,82
Financial expenses 6 -330 486,74 -7 066 886,40

Profit before extra ordinary items,
appropriations and taxes 5 754 240,97 -4 073 801,75

Appropriations 3 1 016 828,17 137 168,75

Income taxes 7 -1 355 146,11 1 189 307,70

Net profit for the period 5 415 923,03 -2 747 325,30  
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PARENT COMPANY BALANCE SHEET, FAS 
 
EUR                      Note 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
ASSETS
Non-current assets

Intangible assets
Intangible rights 8 500,00
 500,00

Tangible assets
Land 532 064,18 749 023,22
Buildings 1 801 882,36 5 999 735,85
Machinery and equipments 578,75 1 041,75
Other tangible assets 16 503,12 20 504,53

9 2 351 028,41 6 770 305,35

Investments
Holdings in Group companies 10 1 349 900,00 13 971 166,62
Holdings in associated companies 11 27 135 973,59 25 665 569,74
Receivables from associated companies 12 239 930,70 500 000,00
Other shares and holdings 13 7 799 360,12 8 022 155,36
Other receivables 14 16 342 094,83 19 837 710,00

52 867 259,24 67 996 601,72

Total non-current assets 55 218 287,65 74 767 407,07

Current assets

Long-term receivables  
Deferred tax assets 15 1 222 892,75 1 797 587,78

Short-term receivables  
Receivables from associated companies 12 3 305,71 428 372,53
Other receivables 14 3 233 930,69 76 875,19
Accrued income 16 408 918,98 705 942,99

3 646 155,38 1 211 190,71

Marketable securities
Other equities and shares 17 21 002 390,93 22 133 961,06

Cash and cash equivalents 18 15 939 888,60 9 468 694,71

Total current assets 41 811 327,66  34 611 434,26

Total assets 97 029 615,31 109 378 841,33  
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Balance Sheet, FAS

EUR                     Note 31.12.2012 31.12.2011
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Share capital 15 178 567,50 15 178 567,50
Share premium account 16 088 978,49 16 088 978,49
Retained earnings 54 820 211,40 73 752 629,66
Profit for the period 5 415 923,03 -2 747 325,30

Total Equity 19 91 503 680,42 102 272 850,35

Appropriations

Depreciation difference 20 438 288,99 1 455 117,16

Liabilities

Long-term
Liabilities to Group companies 21 3 632 000,00 4 232 000,00

Short-term  
Trade payables 19 495,67 515 657,24
Liabilities to Group companies 21 681 723,25 700 000,00
Other creditors 5 940,59 10 309,50
Accrued liabilities 23 748 486,39 192 907,08

1 455 645,90 1 418 873,82

Total liabilities 5 087 645,90 5 650 873,82

Total equity and liabilities 97 029 615,31 109 378 841,33  
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PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS, FAS  
 
EUR Note 1.1.-31.12.2012 1.1.-31.12.2011

Cash flow from operating activities 
Profit for the period 5 415 923,03 -2 747 325,30
Adjustments 24 -4 655 581,57 3 340 425,54
Change in working capital 24 -155 317,31 76 505,83
Interest paid and other financial expenses -102 211,70 -183 530,32
Interest received 110 679,82 192 184,89
Taxes paid -179 284,13 -2 431 879,20
Net cash flow from operating activities 434 208,14 -1 753 618,56

Cash flow from investing activities
Investments in tangible and intangible assets -13 900,00
Proceeds from sale of tangible and intangible assets 4 208 049,00  
Granted loans -239 930,70 -921 000,00
Investments to other investments -26 949 332,52 -35 091 849,22
Repayment of loans receivable 921 000,00 2 800 000,00
Proceeds from sale of other investments 30 079 560,73 10 368 350,31
Interest received from investments 1 031 501,73 755 127,25
Dividend received from investments 1 189 963,85 1 070 569,04
Net cash flow from investing activities 10 240 812,09 -21 032 702,62

Cash flow from financing activities
Repayment of short-term loans -640 000,00 -1 560 594,99
Dividends paid -3 463 826,34 -6 927 652,68
Net cash flow from financing activities -4 103 826,34 -8 488 247,67

Change in cash and cash equivalents 6 571 193,89 -31 274 568,85
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 Jan. 9 468 694,71 40 743 263,56
Demerger costs -100 000,00
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 Dec. 18 15 939 888,60 9 468 694,71  
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, FAS 
 
Parent company accounting policies

Sievi Capital plc is a Finland-based public limited company domiciled in Sievi.  The financial statements of Sievi Capital plc 
have been prepared in accordance with the Finnish Accounting Act and other regulations in force in Finland (FAS).
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the IFRS.  The parent company’s financial statements comply
with IFRS principles wherever possible. With regard to Sievi Capital plc, the mainly Finnish accounting 
practice and IFRS-compliant accounting policies are congruent with each other, so the key accounting policies 
can be read from the accounting policies for consolidated financial statements.
The most significant differences between the parent company’s and the Group’s accounting policies concern the following:
Investments are valued at the lower of cost and probable realisable value on parent company level and on Group level in fair values.  
 
1. Other operting income, EUR

2012 2011

Rental income 164 383,94 1 762 106,06
Proceeds from contract dispute 1 068 931,50
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 56 714,18
Other 10 521,78 1 139,70
Total 1 300 551,40 1 763 245,76

 
 
2. Personnel expenses, EUR

2012 2011

Salaries, wages and fees 185 052,95 323 420,95
Pension costs -5 094,55 7 065,22
Other indirect employee expenses 6 063,92 8 102,91
Total 186 022,32 338 589,08

Average number of employees during the period 2012 2011

Clerical employees 2 3
Total 2 3

Management’s employee benefits and related party transactions are presented in note 29, 
in notes to the consolidated financial statements.

  

The pension costs are based on defined-contribution schemes. The company does not have outstanding stock 
options. The accumulated pension fund is large compared to current salaries. Customer refund from pension 
fund from year  2012 is bigger that the pension costs. 
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3. Depreciation and amortization, EUR

Depreciation and amortisation by asset class 2012 2011

Intangible assets
Intangible rights 500,00 500,00
Total 500,00 500,00

Tangible assets
Buildings 264 404,74 484 299,12
Machinery and equipment 463,00 463,00
Other tangible assets 2 667,60 8 002,80
Total 267 535,34 492 764,92

Total depreciation and amortisation 268 035,34 493 264,92

Change in depreciation difference
Buildings and structures 1 012 607,85 137 031,28
Machinery and equipment 218,89 137,49
Other tangible assets 4 001,43 -0,02
Total 1 016 828,17 137 168,75

 
 
4. Other operating expenses, EUR

Other operating expenses include the following significant 2012 2011
expense items:

Rent and maintenance expenses 135 634,73 102 492,70
Travel, marketing and vehicle expenses 19 538,80 40 125,50
Other operating expenses 142 124,50 717 236,73
Total 297 298,03 859 854,93

 
 
5. Auditor's remuneration, EUR

2012 2011

Auditor's remunerations of the Chartered Accountants 8 100,00 40 767,75
Certificates and statements 4 307,00
Tax consulting
Total 8 100,00 45 074,75

 
 



 
49

6. Financing income and expenses, EUR

2012 2011

Income from shares in associated companies
Dividend income 374 990,13
Interest income 22 542,71

397 532,84
Income from other investments held as financial fixed assets
Dividend income from other 872 667,73 1 070 569,04
Interest income from other 1 231 360,35 1 309 315,34
Total 2 104 028,08 2 379 884,38

Other interest and financial income
From group companies 13 483,68
Other 1 292 470,53 528 179,76
Total 1 292 470,53 541 663,44

Changes in fair value on investments
Other 1 534 693,03 -6 876 147,00
Total 1 534 693,03 -6 876 147,00

Interest expenses and other financial expenses
To group companies -87 333,46 -111 952,16
Other -36 345,76 -78 787,24
Total -123 679,22 -190 739,40

Total financial income and expenses 5 205 045,26 -4 145 338,58

The item other interest and financial income includes
exchange rate gains (net) -582,44 -45 709,93

 
 
7. Income taxes, EUR

2012 2011

Current tax 780 451,08 488 434,12
Change in deferred tax liabilities 574 695,03 -1 677 741,82
Total 1 355 146,11 -1 189 307,70
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8. Intangible assets 2012

Intangible
Intangible assets

rights total

Acquisition cost at 1.1.2012 16 068,00 16 068,00
Acquisition cost at 31.12.2012 16 068,00 16 068,00

Accumulated depreciations at 1.1.2012 -15 568,00 -15 568,00
Depreciations -500,00 -500,00
Accumulated depreciations at 31.12.2012 -16 068,00 -16 068,00

Carrying amount at 1.1.2012 500,00 500,00
Carrying amount at 31.12.2012 0,00 0,00

 
 
8. Intangible assets, EUR 2011

Intangible
Intangible assets

rights total

Acquisition cost at 1.1.2011 16 068,00 16 068,00
Acquisition cost at 31.12.2011 16 068,00 16 068,00

Accumulated depreciations at 1.1.2011 -15 068,00 -15 068,00
Depreciations -500,00 -500,00
Accumulated depreciations at 31.12.2011 -15 568,00 -15 568,00

Carrying amount at 1.1.2011 1 000,00 1 000,00
Carrying amount at 31.12.2011 500,00 500,00
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9. Tangible assets, EUR 2012

Machinery Other Tangible
and tangible assets

Land Buildings equipments assets total

Acquisition cost at 1.1.2012 749 023,22 12 298 915,83 2 315,00 373 211,31 13 423 465,36
Additions 0,00
Deductions -216 959,04 -8 025 614,81 -227 103,52 -8 469 677,37
Acquisition cost at 31.12.2012 532 064,18 4 273 301,02 2 315,00 146 107,79 4 953 787,99

Accumulated depreciations at 1.1.2012 -6 299 179,98 -1 273,25 -352 706,78 -6 653 160,01
Depreciations -264 404,74 -463,00 -2 667,60 -267 535,34
Deductions 4 092 166,06 225 769,71 4 317 935,77
Accumulated depreciations at 31.12.2012 -2 471 418,66 -1 736,25 -129 604,67 -2 602 759,58

Carrying amount at 1.1.2012 749 023,22 5 999 735,85 1 041,75 20 504,53 6 770 305,35
Carrying amount at 31.12.2012 532 064,18 1 801 882,36 578,75 16 503,12 2 351 028,41

The value of land includes connection fees 15.136,91 euros.

 
 
9. Tangible assets, EUR 2011

Machinery Other Tangible
and tangible assets

Land Buildings equipments assets total

Acquisition cost at 1.1.2011 735 123,22 12 298 915,83 2 315,00 373 211,31 13 409 565,36
Additions 13 900,00 13 900,00
Acquisition cost at 31.12.2011 749 023,22 12 298 915,83 2 315,00 373 211,31 13 423 465,36

Accumulated depreciations at 1.1.2011 -5 814 880,86 -810,25 -344 703,98 -6 160 395,09
Depreciations -484 299,12 -463,00 -8 002,80 -492 764,92
Accumulated depreciations at 31.12.2011 -6 299 179,98 -1 273,25 -352 706,78 -6 653 160,01

Carrying amount at 1.1.2011 735 123,22 6 484 034,97 1 504,75 28 507,33 7 249 170,27
Carrying amount at 31.12.2011 749 023,22 5 999 735,85 1 041,75 20 504,53 6 770 305,35

The value of land includes connection fees 124.279,83 euros.
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10. Holdings in Group companies, EUR

2012 2011

Total at beginning of period 13 971 166,62 13 971 166,62
Demerger 1.1.2012, Shares of Scanfil EMS Ltd. -12 621 266,62
Total at end of period 1 349 900,00 13 971 166,62
Carrying amount at 31 Dec. 1 349 900,00 13 971 166,62

Group companies Domicile Parent Parent
Group company company

share share book value

Scanfil NV Belgium 100,00 99,998 1 349 900,00
1 349 900,00

 
 
11. Investments in associated companies, EUR

2012 2011

Total at beginning of period 25 665 569,74 25 562 249,74
Acquisitions 1 470 403,85 103 320,00
Total at end of period 27 135 973,59 25 665 569,74
Carrying amount at 31 Dec. 27 135 973,59 25 665 569,74

Associated companies Domicile Parent Parent
Group company company

share share book value
% %

Panphonics Oy Finland 40,00 40,00 2 000 000,00
IonPhaseE Oy Finland 35,75 35,75 3 573 723,85
iLOQ Oy Finland 22,96 22,96 3 454 080,00
Kitron ASA Norway 32,96 32,96 18 108 169,74

27 135 973,59

The market value of Kitron ASA on 31 December 2012 was EUR 15,8 millions.
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12. Receivables from associated companies, EUR

2012 2011

Long term
Capital loans to associated companies 239 930,70 500 000,00

Short term
Loan receivables 421 000,00
Interest receivables 3 305,71 7 372,53
Total 3 305,71 428 372,53

The current loans of EUR 421,000 granted for IonPhase Oy were repaid, while the equity bond loan of EUR 
500,000 over the year 2011 was converted into shares according to loan terms. At the end of 2012, a new bond 
loan of EUR 239,930.70 was recognised. The bond loan gives authorisation to issue new B-shares so that the 
unpaid loan capital equalling the subscription price of the company's new B-share and any interest 
accumulated on it according to the loan terms entitle the bond holder to subscribe to one new B-share. The 
subscription price comprises the loan's nominal value and the number of company shares can be increased 
by a maximum of 774,806 new B-shares as a result of share subscriptions. The subscription period for the 
shares to be subscribed on the basis of the bond loan starts from 1 March 2014 and ends on 30 December 
2014.

 
 
13. Other shares and holdings, EUR

2012 2011

Total at beginning of period 8 022 155,36 8 167 016,36
Deductions -15 987,72
Change in fair value -206 807,52 -144 861,00
Total at end of period 7 799 360,12 8 022 155,36
Carrying amount at 31 Dec. 7 799 360,12 8 022 155,36

Other shares and holdings include EUR 8.0 million of listed shares in Lännen Tehtaat plc and unlisted
other shares in the amount of EUR 6 thousand. 
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14. Other receivables, EUR

2012 2011
Long term
Marketable securities   
Acquisition cost 17 101 305,59 22 452 890,00
Change in fair value -759 210,76 -2 615 180,00
Carrying amount at 31 Dec. 16 342 094,83 19 837 710,00

Short term
Advance payments
Marketable securities 3 295 875,00
Change in fair value -69 165,00
Carrying amount at 31 Dec. 3 226 710,00

Prepayments 2 110,68
VAT-proceeds 7 220,69 74 764,51
Carrying amount at 31 Dec. 3 233 930,69 76 875,19

The marketable securities mainly consist of bonds, credit linked notes and structured investments.

 
 
15. Deferred tax assets, EUR

2012 2011
Deferred tax assets
Remeasurement at fair value 1 222 892,75 1 797 587,78
Total 1 222 892,75 1 797 587,78

 
 
16. Receivables from Group companies, EUR

2012 2011
Short term receivables
Interest receivables 341 008,01 380 450,93
Other receivables 67 910,97 325 492,06
Total 408 918,98 705 942,99
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17. Receivables from associated companies, EUR

2012 2011
Other shares and investments
Acquisition cost 24 813 746,62 26 711 013,06
Changes in fair value -3 811 355,69 -4 577 052,00
Total 21 002 390,93 22 133 961,06

The marketable securities are listed shares and ETFs and other funds.

 
 
18. Cash and cash equivalents, EUR

2012 2011

Cash and bank balances 15 939 888,60 9 468 694,71
Total 15 939 888,60 9 468 694,71

 
 
19. Equity,  EUR

2012 2011
Share capital
Share capital at 1 Jan. 15 178 567,50 15 178 567,50
Share capital at 31 Dec. 15 178 567,50 15 178 567,50

Share premium account
Share premium account at 1 Jan. 16 088 978,49 16 088 978,49
Share premium account at 31 Dec. 16 088 978,49 16 088 978,49

Total restricted shareholder's equity 31 267 545,99 31 267 545,99

Retained earnings
Retained earnings at 1 Jan. 71 005 304,36 80 680 282,34
Dividends -3 463 826,34 -6 927 652,68
Acquistion/distribution of company's own shares -12 721 266,62
Retained earnings at 31 Dec. 54 820 211,40 73 752 629,66

Profit for the period 5 415 923,03 -2 747 325,30

Total unrestricted equity 60 236 134,43 71 005 304,36

Total equity 91 503 680,42 102 272 850,35

Calculation of distributable funds at 31 Dec.
Retained earnings 54 820 211,40 73 752 629,66
Profit for the period 5 415 923,03 -2 747 325,30
Total 60 236 134,43 71 005 304,36
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20. Depreciation difference by balance sheet item at the end of the period,  EUR

2012 2011

Accumulated depreciation difference, buildings 438 442,70 1 451 050,65
Accumulated depreciation difference, machinery and equipment -153,71 65,08
Accumulated depreciation difference, other tangible assets 4 001,43
Total 438 288,99 1 455 117,16

 
 
21. Liabilities to Group companies, EUR

2012 2011
Long term liabilities to Group companies
Loans 3 632 000,00 4 232 000,00
Total 3 632 000,00 4 232 000,00

Short term liabilities to Group companies
Loans 660 000,00 700 000,00
Trade payables 1 083,73
Accrued liabilities and other short-term liabilities 20 639,52
Total 681 723,25 700 000,00

 
 
22. Interest-bearing loans,  EUR

2012 2011
Long-term
Liabilities to Group companies 3 632 000,00 4 232 000,00

Short-term
Liabilities to Group companies 660 000,00 700 000,00

Maturity of interest-bearing loans
Year 2012 700 000,00
Year 2013 660 000,00 1 410 666,66
Year 2014 1 816 000,00 1 410 666,66
Year 2015 1 816 000,00 1 410 666,68
Total 4 292 000,00 4 932 000,00
Loans are EUR-denominated

1,85 % 1,85 %
The weighted average interest rates of 
interest-bearing loans were as follows:  
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23. Accrued liabilities, EUR

2012 2011
The most significant items included in accrued liabilities
Employee expenses 36 653,91 62 140,86
Direct taxes 699 601,08 98 434,13
Other accrued liabilities 12 231,40 32 332,09
Total 748 486,39 192 907,08

 
 
24. Cash flow statement adjustments,  EUR

2012 2011
Adjustments
Depreciation according to plan 268 035,34 493 264,92
Financial income and expenses -5 205 045,26 4 145 338,58
Taxes 1 355 146,11 -1 189 307,70
Changes in provisions -1 016 828,17 -137 168,75
Other adjustments -56 889,59 28 298,49
Total -4 655 581,57 3 340 425,54

Changes in working capital
Inc(-)/dec(+) in short-term non-interest-bearing receivables  389 717,08 -395 148,21
Inc(+)/dec(-) in short-term non-interest-bearing liabilities  -545 034,39 471 654,04
Total change in working capital -155 317,31 76 505,83

 
 
25. Commitments and contingencies,  EUR

2012 2011
General collateral mortgages given
Mortgages on property 2 522 805,00 3 447 405,00
Business mortgages 6 831 557,38 6 831 557,38
Total 9 354 362,38 10 278 962,38

Guarantees given
On behalf of parent company 3 476 284,77 4 186 609,45
On behalf of associated companies 300 000,00 300 000,00
Total 3 776 284,77 4 486 609,45

A bank guarantee issued by a financial institution to secure the payment of pension contributions related to 
the restructuring of the subsidiary Scanfil NV has been received, and Sievi Capital plc has given the financial 
institution a counterguarantee to cover the potential liabilities resulting from the realisation of the bank 
guarantee. Scanfil NV’s balance sheet contains a corresponding provision. 
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SHARES AND SHARE CAPITAL 

 
Sievi Capital plc has a total of 60,714,270 shares. The company’s registered share capital is EUR 15,178,567.50. 
The company has one series of shares, and each share entitles the holder to one vote and an equal right to 
receive dividends. 
 
Sievi Capital plc’s shares are quoted on NASDAQ OMX Helsinki Ltd. The shares have been publicly traded 
since 24 May 2000. The trading code of the shares is SCI1V. The shares are included in the book-entry 
securities system maintained by Euroclear Finland Ltd. 
 
Board's authorisations in force 
 
Sievi Capital plc’s Annual General Meeting held on 19 April 2012 decided to authorise the Board of Directors 
to decide on repurchasing a maximum of 3,000,000 treasury shares with distributable assets in accordance 
with the Board of Directors’ proposal. The authorisation will remain in force for 18 months after it is issued.  
On 8 April 2010, the AGM authorised the Board of Directors to decide on the transfer of a maximum of 
5,900,000 treasury shares held by the company in compliance with the regulations of the Companies Act in 
force. The authorisation will remain in force for three years after it is issued. The authorisations have not 
been exercised. 

 
The Board of Directors has no existing share issue authorisations or authorisations to issue convertible bonds 
or bonds with warrants.  

 
The Board of Directors' proposals to the Annual General Meeting are available on the company website at 
www.sievicapital.com. 
 
Treasury shares 
 
On 31 December 2012, the company owned a total of 2,983,831 treasury shares, representing 4.9% of the 
company's share capital and total number of votes. No treasury shares were purchased or conveyed during 
the 2012 financial period.  
 
Dividend distribution policy 
 
The company aims to pay dividend annually. The level of dividends paid and the date of payment are 
affected, inter alia, by the Group’s result, financial position, need for capital and other possible factors. The 
aim is to distribute approximately one-third of the Group’s annual profit as dividend to shareholders. 
 
The Board of Director's proposal for the distribution of assets 
 
The Board of Directors proposes to the Annual General Meeting that no dividend be paid for the period 
closed on 31 December 2012. 
The Board of Directors proposes that the share premium account be reduced and a return of capital of EUR 
0.06 be paid per each outstanding share, i.e. a total of EUR 3,463,826.34.  
 
For the year 2011, a dividend of EUR 0.06 per share was paid, i.e. a total of EUR 3,463,826.34. The dividend 
was paid on 3 May 2012. 
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Share price development, trading and market value 
 
In 2012, the number of Sievi Capital plc shares traded on NASDAQ OMX Helsinki Ltd was 8,929,731, which 
accounts for 14.7% of all outstanding shares. The value of shares traded was EUR 10.3 million and the 
average price EUR 1.16. The market value of share capital was EUR 55.9 million at the end of 2012. The 
highest trading price was EUR 1.65 and the lowest EUR 0.88. The closing price was EUR 0.91. 
 



 
60

 
Distribution of ownership

Distribution of ownership magnitudes on 31.12.2012

Number of shares Units % Units %
 1 - 200 1 612 36,60 251 583 0,41

201 - 1000 1 665 37,80 999 958 1,65
1001 - 2000 493 11,19 795 987 1,31
2001 - 10000 489 11,10 2 120 083 3,49

10001 - 100000 118 2,68 3 288 463 5,42
100001 - 99999999 28 0,64 53 258 196 87,72

Total 4 405 100,00 60 714 270 100,00

Distribution of ownership accross shareholders on 31.12.2012

Distribution Distribution
% %

Companies 260 5,90 12 102 289 19,93
Financial and insurance istitutions 10 0,23 188 286 0,31
Public institutions 6 0,14 1 250 045 2,06
Non-profit organizations 18 0,41 2 298 884 3,79
Households 4 100 93,08 44 009 866 72,49
Foreign owners 11 0,25 9 350 0,02
Total 4 405 100,00 59 858 720 98,59

Out of which in control register 8 855 550 1,41

Information regarding shareholders

Largest shareholders on 31.12.2012 Distribution%
of shares

Units and votes
 1.  Takanen Jorma 17 380 305 28,63
 2.  Varikot ltd 7 273 109 11,98
 3.  Takanen Harri 4 002 664 6,59
 4.  Tolonen Jonna 3 251 950 5,36
 5.  Pöllä Reijo 3 128 745 5,15
 6.  Sievi Capital plc 2 983 831 4,91
 7.  Takanen Jarkko 2 477 169 4,08
 8.  Laakkonen Mikko 2 392 862 3,94
 9.  Takanen Martti 1 954 218 3,22
10.  Foundation of Riitta and Jorma J. Takanen 1 900 000 3,13

Number of 
shareholders 

     Total 
shares and 

votes

  Distribution 
of shares and 

votes 

Number of 
shareholders 

Number of 
shares

Distribution 
of 

shareholders

 



–
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and asset management are properly supervised, and the President is responsible for ensuring that the 
company's accounting practices comply with the law and that asset management has been organised in a 
reliable manner.  

The auditor's duties 
Our duty is to issue a statement on the financial statements, consolidated financial statements and annual 
report on the basis of our audit. The Finnish Auditing Act requires that professional ethical principles be 
adhered to. The audit has been conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in 
Finland. Accepted auditing standards require that the audit is planned and performed in order to obtain 
reasonable assurance that the financial statements or annual report are free of material misstatement and to 
establish that the parent company's Board members or President are not guilty of any act or malpractice that 
could result in the company being liable for damages, or have not violated the Companies Act of the Articles 
of Association.  

The audit consists of measures to obtain auditing evidence of sections included in the financial statements 
and annual report, as well as other information presented therein. The choice of measures is based on the 
auditor's consideration, including the assessment of the risk of a substantial inaccuracy due to malpractice or 
error. When assessing these risks, the auditor takes internal auditing into account, which is significant 
considering the preparation of the financial statements and annual report containing sufficient and 
appropriate information. The auditor assesses internal auditing in order to plan appropriate auditing 
measures for the conditions, but not in order to issue a statement on the efficiency of the company's internal 
auditing. The audit also covers the assessment of the appropriateness of the accounting principles applied to 
the financial statements, the reasonability of the acting management's accounting estimates, and the general 
presentation of the financial statements and annual report.  

In our view, we have obtained sufficient auditing evidence in order to render our informed statement. 

Statement on the consolidated financial statements 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give correct and sufficient information about the 
Group's financial position and its operational result and cash flows in accordance with the International 
Financial Reporting Standards approved for use in the European Union. 

Statement on the financial statements and annual report 
In our opinion, the financial statements and annual report give correct and sufficient information about the 
operational result and financial position of the Group and the parent company in accordance with the rules 
on the preparation of financial statements and annual reports valid in Finland. The information in the annual 
report is consistent with the information in the financial statements.  

 

Sievi, 11 March 2013 

KPMG Oy Ab 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2012 
 
Sievi Capital plc is a publicly listed company, managed in accordance with the company’s Articles of 
Association, the Finnish Companies Act and other legislation relating to the company. In addition, the 
company follows the Finnish Corporate Governance Code issued by the Securities Market Association on 15 
June 2010, excluding recommendations 9 (Number and qualifications of Board members, Board assembly), 
14 (Number of independent directors), 26 (Independence of the members of the audit committee) and 29 
(Members of the nomination committee and appointment of members). 
 
This statement has been reviewed by Sievi Capital plc's Board of Directors. Sievi Capital plc's auditing firm 
has verified that the summary description of the internal control and risk management associated with the 
financial reporting process is consistent with the financial statements.  
 
This Corporate Governance Statement is available on the company's website at www.sievicapital.com under 
Investors, and it complies with recommendation 51 of the Finnish Corporate Governance Code. The Finnish 
Corporate Governance Code is available to the public at www.cgfinland.fi.  
 
Board of Directors 
 
Under the Companies Act, the Board of Directors is responsible for the management of the company and 
proper organisation of operations. The members of the Board of Directors are elected by the Annual General 
Meeting. According to the Articles of Association, Sievi Capital plc’s Board of Directors shall include a 
minimum of five and a maximum of seven regular members. The Board of Directors elects a Chairman from 
among its members. The Board of Directors is responsible for deciding on the business strategy, significant 
investments, organisation and finance, as well as supervising the company’s administration and operations. 
The Board of Directors shall also ensure that supervision of the company’s accounts and asset management 
is properly organised. 
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Members of the Board of Directors 
 
The Annual General Meeting held on 19 April 2012 elected the following Board members: 

 
Mr. Asa-Matti Lyytinen 

Independent of the company and major shareholders. Chairman of the Board of Directors 
Born 1950, M.Sc. (Econ.) Member of the Board of Directors of Sievi Capital plc since 2000. Chairman 
of the Board of Directors: Kitron ASA, Panphonics ltd, Fermlab ltd, Fuko Pharma ltd 
 

Mr. Jorma J. Takanen 
Member of the Board of Directors. Born 1946, Qualified Chemical Engineer. Scanfil plc's 
founder, President and Board member in 1976–2005, and Sievi Capital plc's Board member 
and Chairman in 2002–2012. President of Sievi Capital plc 
 

Mr. Harri Takanen 
Member of the Board of Directors. Harri Takanen (born 1968), President of Scanfil plc and Scanfil 
EMS plc. Harri Takanen has worked as Sievi Capital plc's (former Scanfil plc) President in 2007–
2011. He has worked in the Scanfil Group since 1994 as a director of operations in China, President 
of Scanfil (Hangzhou) Co., Ltd., technological director, customer relations director, customer service 
manager, and a director of the Sievi mechanics plant. Harri Takanen is a Master of Science. 

 
Mr. Jarkko Takanen  

Member of the Board of Directors. Born 1967, Qualified Production Engineer, holds a Commercial 
College Diploma in Management Accountancy. Member of the Board of Directors of Scanfil plc 
1997–2002 and of Scanfil plc 2002–2003 and since 2005. Managing Director, Jussi Capital plc. 

 
Ms. Riitta Kotilainen 

Member of the Board of Directors. Riitta Kotilainen (born 1958), director of electrical works, Scanfil 
EMS plc. Kotilainen has worked as the Managing Director of E. Kotilainen plc since 1999. In 1985–
1999, she worked as a director of electrical works at E. Kotilainen plc. In 1983–1985, she worked as a 
supervisor in the electrical installation unit at Kokkolan Hankkija. Riitta Kotilainen is an engineer in 
electric power. Independent of the company and major shareholders. Currently, Riitta Kotilainen is a 
member of the Administrative Council of Sievin Osuuspankki and the Managing Director of Varikot 
plc. 
 

 
The term of office of the Board members expires at the close of the first Annual General Meeting following 
the one at which they were elected.  
 
Independence of Board members 
 
According to an evaluation of independence carried out by the Board, one Board member (Asa-Matti 
Lyytinen) is independent of the company. The non-independent members of the Board (Jorma J. Takanen, 
Harri Takanen, Jarkko Takanen and Riitta Kotilainen) are among the seven biggest shareholders in the 
company. Due to the shareholding-related entrepreneurship and financial risk, it is justifiable that they 
supervise the interests of the shareholders also as members of the Board of Directors and the Audit 
Committee. In addition, Jorma J. Takanen is the founder of the company and served as the President & CEO 
in 1976–2005, Jarkko Takanen and Harri Takanen have held various positions in the company, so they all are 
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extensively experienced in the operation of the company and in the industry, which can be utilised by the 
entire company and shareholders through Board membership. 
 
Activity of the Board 
 
The Board of Directors had a total of 13 meetings in 2012, some of which were telephone meetings. The 
average attendance rate at Board meetings was 100%.   
 
The matters regularly dealt with by the Board of Directors are specified in the Board's written charter. The 
charter is reviewed, ratified and, if necessary, updated on a yearly basis. In accordance with the charter, 
matters to be dealt with by the Board meetings include investment activities and reporting on investment 
activities, investing the investment company's cash assets, the company's business strategy, internal audit 
and control systems, evaluation of risks, reward schemes, the Group's insurance policies and the auditor's 
audit report. The Board annually performs a self-evaluation of its work.   
 
Board Committees 
 
The Board of Directors has established two committees: a Nomination Committee and an Audit Committee. 
 
The task of the Nomination Committee is to prepare matters related to the appointment and remuneration of 
the members of the Board of Directors and, when necessary, find suitable new members for it.  The 
Committee consists of two members: Jorma J. Takanen, who acts as the Chairman, and Asa-Matti Lyytinen. 
In the Nomination Committee, Jorma J. Takanen is the largest single shareholder in the company while Asa-
Matti Lyytinen is independent of the company. The composition of the Committee is considered to secure 
the interests of the shareholders in committee work. The Committee convened a total of two times during 
2012. The attendance rate of the Committee members was 100%. 
 
The Audit Committee comprises the entire Board and is chaired by Jorma J. Takanen. The task of the Audit 
Committee is to supervise the financial reporting process and the reporting of the financial statements and 
interim reports as well as to monitor the functioning of the company's internal control and risk management. 
It also evaluates the appropriateness of auditing and prepares the proposal for the appointment of an 
auditor. 
  
President 
 
The Board of Directors decides on the appointment and dismissal of the President and the terms and 
conditions of his employment. The President is covered by the performance and profit bonus systems 
decided on separately by the Board of Directors at any given time. The company's President from 1 January 
to 31 December 2012 was Jorma J. Takanen (born 1946).  
 
The President’s duties are determined in accordance with the Companies Act. The President is in charge of 
the company’s operative management in accordance with guidelines and orders given by the Board of 
Directors. The President shall ensure that the company’s accounting practices comply with legislation and 
that asset management is organised in a reliable manner. President Jorma J. Takanen is responsible for the 
strategic planning and execution of the company's investment activities. 
 
The President has a separate service contract that is valid until further notice with a mutual notice period of 
three months. If the company terminates the presidency agreement signed with the President, no separate 
compensation will be paid to the President. The President's retirement age is the statutory retirement age.  
 



 
66

Jorma J. Takanen  has been the company’s  President from 1 January 2012. His terms and conditions of 
employment, salary and other benefits are presented on the company’s website at  www.sievicapital.com / 
Salary- and compensation review. 
 
Outlines of the internal control and audit related to the financial reporting process, and 
risk management 
 
Risk management 
 
The Board of Directors of Sievi Capital plc is responsible for the appropriate organisation of the Group's risk 
management and internal control and audit.  
 
Risk management is based on a risk management policy approved by the Board, aiming to manage risks in a 
comprehensive and proactive manner. The assessment of risks is part of the annual strategy and business 
planning process. There is no separate risk management organisation; risk management is incorporated into 
the business processes and the management system. Risk management aims to observe and analyse factors 
that might have a negative impact on the achievement of the company's goals and to take measures to 
mitigate or completely eliminate the risks.  
 
Internal control 
 
Sievi Capital plc's internal control is a continuous process to ensure profitable and uninterrupted operation. 
Control aims to minimise risks by ensuring the reliability of reporting and compliance with laws and 
regulations. 
  
Internal control is based on the investment company's shared values, ethical guidelines and industry 
legislation from which the operating principles and guidelines followed are derived. The guidelines cover 
procedures for core operations. The company's management is responsible for the internal control system. 
Internal control forms an active part of the company's management and administration. The Group's 
operational management holds the responsibility for developing the harmonised business processes 
included in the control system. The Group's financial administration supports and coordinates the financial 
management of the Group. 
 
The controls contained in Sievi Capital's operating processes form the basis of the company's financial 
control. They enable the company to swiftly identify and react to any deviations from the norm. The 
management's monthly reporting is a fundamental part of financial control. It includes the result of business 
operations carried out and an analysis of the differences between the forecast and actual result. The 
indicators monitored in monthly reporting have been set so as to support the achievement of the investment 
company's targets and to identify issues that require control measures. An auditing firm supports the 
performance of financial control.  
  
The interpretation and application of accounting standards is carried out centrally by financial 
administration. These standards form the basis for the investment company's shared recognition principles 
and reporting and accounting standards. In order to verify the reliability of financial reporting, central 
functions are acquired from Scanfil plc and implemented using reliable reporting tools. The use of 
standardised tools enables continuous control and successful change management. 
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Internal audit 
 
Considering the investment company's structure and extent, the company does not have a separate internal 
audit organisation.  The company's financial administration performs internal audit tasks and reports  
regularly to the President and Board of Directors. 
 
Group structure of Sievi Capital plc 1.1.2012 onwards. 

 
                  99,98%          35,75%           40%           32,96%          23%      8,6% 
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